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Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Belstar Microfinance Limited 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Company Limited) ("the Company"), 
comprising of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes 
in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013, ("the 

Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and its profit 
including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended 
on that date. 

Basis of Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
("SA's") issued by the ICAI, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under 
those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial 

Statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of . 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 

thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the I CAi's Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements. 



Independent Auditors' Report (Contd.) 

Emphasis of matter 

We draw attention to Note No.46.2 of the Financial Statements, which describes extent to which the 
Covid-19 pandemic will impact the Company's performance. The said note narrates Management's 
proposed future actions based on its assessment of internal and external factors and macro level 
indicators. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, 
Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate 
Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the Financial Statements and our 
auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the Audit of Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that 
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other 
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 
of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 



Independent Auditors' Report (Contd.) 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these Financial Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has 
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors 
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements. 
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the 
"Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 & 4 of the Order: 

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 
31st March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164(2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
"Annexure B''. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting. 
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g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, In our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the 
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 
of the Act 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us : 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position 
in its Financial Statements; 

ii. Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

Place: Chennai 

Date: May 10, 2020 

For N.Sankaran & Co 

Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registratio(;:j~·,W3590S) 

!YJOY:±f!~/ 
Partner 

(Membership No. 207188) 

UDIN:20207188AAAABE9063 
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ANNEXURE 'A' REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING "REPORT ON OTHER 
LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS" OF OUR INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPOR'f OF 
EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS BELSTAR INVESTMENT AND FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED), FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the 
Financial Statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanation 
given to us and the books of accounts and other records examined by us in the normal course of the 
audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that 

i. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets; 

The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased manner, designed 
to cover al! the items over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the company and nature of its business. Pursuant to the program, a portion 
of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the management during the year and no 
material discrepancies between the books/records and the physical fixed assets have been 
noticed. The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company. 

ii. The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC), primarily engaged in financing 
activities and it does hold any physical inventories. Accordingly, clause 3(ii) of the order is not 
applicable. 

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189 of 
the Act. 

iv. The clause regarding loans, Investments and Guarantees and security as per provisions of 
section.185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 not applicable to the Company. 

v. In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 
76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the order are not applicable. 

vi. The Central Government has.not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of 
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(vi) of the order is 
not applicable to the Company. 

vii. The Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including 
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Goods & Service 
Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with 
the appropriate authorities. 

There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above as at March 31, 2020 for a 
period of more than six months from the date on when they become payable. 
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There are no dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value 
added tax, goods and service tax and cess outstanding as at March 31, 2020 on account of any 
dispute except as given below. 

Name Nature of Amount (Rs.) Amount paid Period to Forum where 
of the Statute dues under protest which dispute is 

(Rs.) amount pending 
relates 

Income Tax Income tax 7,31,50,000 - AY 2017-18 Commissioner 
Act, 1961 of Income Tax 

(Aooealsl 

viii. The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks and Financial Institutions, 
debenture holders. 

ix. Moneys raised by way debt instruments and term loans were applied for the purposes for 
which those are raised. The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or 
further public offer. 

x. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has noticed and reported fraud in the nature of cash defalcation by 
Officers/Employees amounting to Rs. 5,31,894 during the year. 

xi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company's 
status for the year is Public Company and has accordingly paid/provided managerial 
remuneration as per provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V of Companies 
Act, 2013. 

xii . The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order 
are not applicable. 

xiii . Jn our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 
and 188 of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the 
Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

xiv. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully 
or partly paid convertible c.ebentures di.;:ring the financial year ended March 31, 2020 and 
hence reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the order is not applicable to the company. 

xv. In our opinion, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the 
directors or persons connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act. 
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xvi. The Company is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934 and the same has been complied with. 

For N.Sankaran & Co 

Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No.003590S) 

~~rabhakar 
Partner 

(Membership No. 207188) 

Place: Chennai 

Date: May 10, 2020 
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ANNEXURE "B'' REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2(F) UNDER THE HEADING "REPORT ON OTHER 
LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS" OF OUR AUDITOR'S REPORT TO OF EVEN DATE 
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BELST AR MICRO FINANCE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN 
AS BELSTAR INVESTMENT AND FINANCE PRIVATE LIM~TED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 
31,2020 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub­
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial contra!s over financial reporting of Belstar Microfinance 
Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial 
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Ir.stitute 
of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects. 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 

audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
fo r our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 

Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that 

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and 

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 
the Financial Statements. 

Inherent Limitations oflnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 

due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
Opinion 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as 

at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. 

For N.Sankaran & Co 

Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No.003590 

i& 
Partner 

(Membership No. 207188) 

Place: Chennai 

Date: May 10, 2020 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(FormP.rly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Prilfate Limited) 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020 

Particulars 

ASSETS 

1 Financial assets 
a) Cash and cash equ iva lents 

b) Bank Balance other than (a) above 

c) Receivables 

(i) Trade Receivables 

(I I) Other Receivables 

rl) Loans 

e) Investments 

f) Other Financial assets 

2 Non-financial Assets 
a) Current tax assets (Net) 

b) Deferred tax assets (Net) 

c) Investment Property 

d) Property, Plant and Eq uipment 

e) Right-of-use assets 

f) Otner Intangible assets 

g) Other non financial ;issets 

Tc·tal assets 

II LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
1 Financial liabilities 
a) Derivative f inancial instruments 

h) ?ayables 

(I) Trade Payables 

(i/ total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

(ii i tota l outstanding dues of credito rs other than micro enterprises and 

small enterprises 

(Ill Other Payables 

(i) total outs ta nding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

!;i' total outst3nding dues of creditors othe thon micro enterprises and 

sn·,al l entE:rprises 

cl Deb~ Ser.ur1ties 

di Borrowings (other than debt securities) 

e/ Sutlordinated Liabil it ies 

7) CJth,,r Financial liabilit,es 

2 Non-financial liabilities 
a) Provisions 

b) Other ncn-financial liabilities 

:S Eqi..ity 
a) Equit\' share capitJI 

b) Other equity 

Notes 

6 
7 

8 

9 

10 

36 

11 
12 
13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 
23 

As at 

March 31, 2020 

1,719.28 

1,423.79 

1.60 

20,888.68 

872.05 

5.88 
46.52 

1.10 

53.73 

91.89 
13 .09 

70.27 

25,187.88 

369.90 

17,541 .68 

1,044 09 

975.52 

S8.07 

220.34 

375.21 

4,603 .07 ' 

(Rs. In millions) 

As at 

March 31, 2019 

2,188.23 

1,094.87 

8.46 

16,387.65 

558.43 

13.98 
94.24 

1.10 

41.01 

11.14 

39.60 
20,438.71 

2,279.88 

12,643.25 

905.31 

491.66 

46.91 

69.94 

375.21 

3,626.55 

____ _ . -1..~.~~giabiliti~~d Equi!'L__ ________________ ~--~--------~----------1 

I Notes ·»n <. ccou1Hs 1orrr· oart r;f fir.al accounts 

2:;,187.83 20,438.71 

j ft,,. p~1 our 1<9.port of even da~2 att;iched 

I 

r ·.ir M/s. N. Sankaran & Co . 

Chartered Acc::iuntants 

(FHN : ,)Q3590S) 

rnn 
MN Prabliakar 

l 
Partr:ec 

M.~h,.207188 

pat [> : ~ay 10, .2020 
Place ~henna1 ------------· 

For and on behalf of Boa rd of Directors 

~~J~ 
Dr.Kalpanaa Sankar 
M<rnaging Director 

(DIN. 01926545) 

Chief Financial Officer 

S.Chandrasekar 

Wholetime Director 

(DIN. 02360909j 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2020 

(I) 

(II) 

(Ill) 

(IV) 

(V) 

(VI) 

(VII) 

Particulars 

Revenue from operations 

(i) Interest income 

(ii) Sale of services 

(iii) Net gain on fair value changes on investments 

(iv) Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments 

Total Revenue from operations 

Other Income 

Total Income (I+ II) 

Expenses 

(i) Finance cost 

(ii) Fee and commission expenses 

(iii) Impairment of financial instruments 

{iv) Employee benefit expenses 

(v) Depreciation, amortization and impairment 

{vi) Other expenses 

Total Expenses 

Profit/(loss) before tax (Ill - IV) 

Tax Expense: 

(1) Current tax 

(2) Deferred tax charge/ (credit) 

Profit/(loss) for the period (V - VI) 

(VIII) Other Comprehensive Income 

A) Items that will not be classified to profit or loss 

(i) Remeasurement gain/ (loss) of defined benefit plans 

(ii) Tax impact thereon 

Subtotal (A) 

B) Items that will be classified to profit or loss 

(i) Fair value gain/ (loss) on debt instruments measured at 

FVOCI 

(i i) Tax impact thereon 

Subtotal {B) 

Other Comprehensive Income (A+ B) 

{IX) Total Comprehensive Income for the period {VII+ VIII) 

(X) Earnings per equity share 

Basic (Rs.) 

Diluted (Rs.) 

Notes on accounts form part of final accounts 

As per our Report of even date attached 

For M/s. N. Sankaran & Co. ~OFI/\/~ 
Chartered Accountants '$:v ~C\ 

Notes 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

34 

35 

36 

37 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2020 

4,649.45 

10.64 

66.75 

266.76 

4,993.60 

13.87 

5,007.47 

1,799.12 

99.07 

229.50 

1,050.93 

90.80 

405.60 

3,675.02 

1,332.45 

291.45 

51.01 

989.99 

(1.28) 

0.32 

(0.96) 

{0.25) 

0.06 

(0.19) 

(1.15) 

988.84 

26.39 

26.39 

(Rs. In millions) 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2019 

3,461.37 

26.59 

64.62 

118.S l 

3,671.09 

9.59 

3,680.68 

1,491.91 

5.63 

183.63 

616.32 

44.20 

308.01 

2,649.70 

1,030.98 

322.07 

(19 .62) 

728.53 

(5 .06) 

1.47 

(3.59) 

17.63 

(5.13) 

12.50 

8.91 

737.44 

23.35 

23.35 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

Dr.Kalpanaa Sankar 

Managing Director 

(DIN. 01926545) 

1-t.!~- - v _· -;-~1_. " 
S.Chandrasekar 

Wholetime Director 

(DIN. 02360909) (FRN : 0035~) ~~,.Y a: CHENNAI ~ C:.)a</' 4 600 083 :f n -~ ~· 'b yd'> ~ 
~ g CHENNAJ ~ ~ ~11 * 0~ 

M N Prabhakar ~ !;; 
f~ 

L Muralidharan Sunil Kumar Sahu 

Company Secretary Partner <'fEo ACC'Vi~~ 
M.No.207188 

Date: May 10, 2020 

Place: Chennai 

-
Chief Financial Officer 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2020 

a. Equity Share Capital 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fuc.l_,ly_,p'-a'-id"---------­

As at April 01, 2018 

Issued during th e yea r 

As at March 31, 2019 

Issued during the year 

As at March 31, 2020 

b. Other E uit 

No. in millions 

24.65 

12.87 

37.52 

37.52 

Rs. in millions 
246.47 

128.74 

375.21 

375.21 

Particulars Reserves and Surplus 

Balance as at April 01, 2018 

Dividends' including tax 

Transfer to/ from retained earnings 

Other Additions I Deductions during the year 

Premium received duri ng the year 
Profit (loss) for the year after income tax 

Other Comprehensive Income for the yea r before 

income tax 

Less : Income Tax 

Balance as at March 31, 2019 

Dividends including tax 

Transfer to/ from retained earnings 

Other Additions / Deductions during the yea r 

Prem ium received during the year 

Profit (loss) for the year after income tax 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year before 

income tax 

Less: Income Tax 

Balance as at March 31, 2020 

Notes on accounts form part of final accounts 

As per our Repo rt of even date attached 

For M/s. N. Sankaran & Co. 

Chartered Accounta nts 

(FRN: 003590S) 

tl.o. 
Partner 

M.No.207188 

Date: May 10, 2020 

Place: Chenna i 

Statutory 

Reserve 

118.88 

145.71 

264.58 

198.00 

462.58 

Securities 

Premium 

Account 

Debenture Capital General 

redemption redemption Reserve 

Retained 

Earnings 

reserve reserve 

495.48 88.31 

(88.31) 

1,889.51 

2,384.99 

500.00 

2,384.99 500.00 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

Managing Director 

(DIN. 01926545) 

0.01 

0.01 

0.01 

303.17 

(57.39) 

(10.30) 

728.53 

964.01 

(22.62) 

(698.00) 

10.30 

989.99 

1,243.68 

S. Chandrasekar 

Wholetime Director 

(D IN. 02360909) 

t~~ Sunil Kumar Sahu 

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer 

(Rs. In millions) 

Other 

comprehensive 
income 

4.05 

12.57 

(3.66) 

12.96 

(1.53) 

0.38 

11.81 

Total 

1,009.90 

(10.30) 

1,889.51 

728.53 

12.57 

(3.66) 

3,626.55 

(22.62) 

10.30 

989.99 

(1.53) 

0.38 

4,603.07 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 
Cash Flow Statement for the period ended March 31, 2020 

(Rs. In millions) 

Particula rs 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Operating activities 

Profit before tax 1,332.45 1,030.98 

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows: 

Depreciation & amortisation 90.80 44.20 

Impairment on financial instruments 229.50 183.63 
Finance cost 1,799.12 1,491.91 

Rea lised gain on investment held for trading (66.75) (64.62) 

Interest income on deposits (99.99) (61.96) 

Profit on sa le of asset (0.17) 

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 3,284.96 2,624.14 

Working capital changes 

(Increase)/ Decrease inTrade receivables 6.86 (5.54) 

(Increase) / Decrease in Loans (4,720.43) (5,246.01) 

(Increase) I Decrease in Other financial asset (296.63) (476.18) 

(Increase)/ Decrease in Other non financia l asset (17.20) (4.06) 

Increase I (Decrease) in Other liabilities 586.62 354.88 

Increase I (Decre ase) in Provision 9.88 11.63 

Cash flows from/( used in) operating activities before tax (1,145.97) (2,741.14) 

Interest paid on borrowings (1,868.43) (1,408.56) 

Income tax paid (299.72) (386.99) 

Net cash flows from/( used in) operating activities (3,314.12) (4,536.69) 

Investing activities 

Acquisition of fixed and intangible assets (73.43) (58.09) 

Acquisition of investment property -
Realised gain on investment held for trading 66.75 64.62 

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 0.31 0.03 

Investment in fixed deposits (328.92) (355.66) 

Interest received on deposits 80.02 50.23 
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities (255.27) (298.87) 

Financing activities 

Proceeds from issue of shares 2,007.95 
Net receipts/Payments from borrowings 3,158.15 3,689.31 
In terest paid on Lease liabilities (10.02) 
Payment towards Lease liabi lities (25.07) 
Dividend paid on equity shares (22.62) 

Net cash flows from financing activities 3,100.44 5,697.26 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (468.95) 861.70 
Net foreign exchange difference 
Ca sh and cash equivalents at 1 April 2,188.23 1,326.53 
Cash and cash equivalents at reporting date 1,719.28 2,188.23 

Notes on accounts form part of final accounts For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

As per our Report of even date attached 

~CML-1~ j_ ~.AD I ,,L,,._ ... _ ..... 
" v - ~ -

For M/ s. N. Sankaran & Co. v~OFIN.q~ Dr.Kalpanaa Sankar S.Chandrasekar 

'""""' "~ ~ 0 

Managing Director Wholetime Director 

(F . 003590~ 7 • ja: CHENNAI i; (DIN. 01926545) (DIN. 02360909) a ~ ~ , 600 0113 ~ 

/ J:'::::!:,~ .4r.oJ. 11.R A Y. '°' 
&~~ ~ -~ ,J I ,fif/--~4')~"'1~8 * 0"'>.'Y. - -.,. ... eg Sunil Kumar Sahu 

Partner ;., CHENNAI "* Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
-::s:- ::? 

M No.207188 ~ ~ 

Date· May 10, 2020 ~EOACC'\i~~ 
Place Chenna1 --=-



Belstar Microfinance Limited 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

Significant Accounting Policies 

1. Corporate Information 

Belstar Microfinance Limited, (Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) (the 

Company) a Company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office at No 33, 4gth 

Street, 9th Avenue, Ashok Nagar, Chennai- 600083 and registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a non­

banking financial company (NBFC) from March 2001. The Company is basically engaged in the business of 

providing loans and access to Credit to the Self-Help Group (SHG) members / Joint Liability Group (JLG) 

members known as "Pragati" and other loans like Sanitation, Small Enterprise Loan (SEL) and operating in 

the financial inclusion space. The Company got classified as a NBFC - MFI effective 11 December 2013 . The 

company is a Systemically Important Non - Deposit taking NBFC MFI (NDSl-NBFC-MFI) as at March 31, 2020. 

During the year, the Company name has been changed from "Belstar Investment and Finance Private 

Limited" to "Belstar Microfinance Private Limited" with effect from October 3, 2019 and subsequently 

converted into a public limited company as "Belstar Microfinance Limited" with effect from January 10, 

2020. 

2. Basis of preparation 

Statement of compliance 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the applicable Indian 

Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), read with 

the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards Rules), 2015 (as amended from time to time) and other 

accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

Basis of measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the 

application of fair value measurements required or allowed by relevant accounting standards. Accounting 

policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated . 

Functional and presentation currency 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also functional currency of the 

Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. All values 

are rounded to the nearest millions, except when otherwise indicated . 

3. Significant accounting policies 

3.1 Recognition of interest income 
The Company computes Interest income by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount 

of a financial asset except for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets and other credit­

impa ired financial assets. 



Belstar Microfinance Limited 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the Company applies the credit-adjusted 

effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from initial recognition . 

For other credit-impaired financial assets, the Company applies effective interest rate to the amortised cost 
of the financial asset in subsequent reporting periods. 

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts 

through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial 

asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. 

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company includes all fees and charges paid or received to 
and from the borrowers that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other 

premiums or discounts. 

Interest income on all trading assets and financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL is 

recognised using the contractual interest rate in net gain on fair value changes. 

3.2 Recognition of income and expenses 

Revenue (other than for financial instruments) is measured at fair value of the consideration received or 

receivable . Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers outlines a single comprehensive model of 

accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes current revenue recognition 

guidance found within Ind ASs. 

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model as set out in 

Ind 115: 

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more 

parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must 

be met. 

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract 

with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer. 

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the 

Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, 

excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has 

more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each performance 

obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be 

entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation . 

St ep 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation 

3.2.1 Dividend income 

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is establ ished, it is probable 

that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the 

dividend can be measured reliably. 



Belstar Microfinance Limited 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

3.3 Financial instruments 

3.3.1 Financial asset 

Initial recognition 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair 

value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 

Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to the customers' account. 

3.3.2 Initial and subsequent measurement 

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories: 

1. Debt instruments at amortised cost 

2. Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). 

3. Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). 

4. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income FVTOCI. 

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets' cash flows and the Company's 

business model for managing financial assets. 

The IND AS 109 classification and measurement model requires that all debt instrument financial assets that 

do not meet a "solely payment of principal and interest" (SPPI) test, including those that contain embedded 

derivatives, be classified at initial recognition as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). The intent of the 

SPPI test is to ensure that debt instruments that contain non-basic lending features, such as conversion 

options and equity linked pay-outs, are measured at FVTPL. 

Accordingly, for debt instrument financial assets that meet the SPPI test, the Company classifies its assets 

based on the business model under which these instruments are managed. 

Debt instruments that are managed on a "held for trading" or "fair value" basis is classified as FVTPL. Financial 

instruments held at fair value through profit or loss, are initially recognised at fair value, with transaction 

costs recogn ised in the income statement as incurred. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value and any 

gains or losses are recognised in the income statement as they arise. 

Debt instruments that are managed on a "hold to collect and for sale" basis is classified as fair value through 

other comprehensive income (FVOCI) for debt. These debt instruments are initially recognised at fair value 

plus directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising 

from changes in fair value are included in other comprehensive income 

within a separate component of equity. Impairment losses or reversals, interest revenue and foreign 

exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss. Upon disposal, the cumulative gain or loss 

previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to the income statement . 

Debt instruments that are managed on a "hold to collect" basis will be classified as amortized cost. After 

init ial measurement at fair value plus directly attributable costs, these financial assets are subsequently 

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by 

considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an ~ntegral part of the EIR. The 
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The measurement of credit impairment is based on the three-stage expected credit loss model described 
below in Note 3.6 Impairment of financial assets. 

All equity instrument financial assets are classified at initial recognition as FVTPL unless an irrevocable 

designation is made to classify the instrument as FV-OCI for equities. The FV-OCI for equities category results 

in all realized and unrealized gains and losses being recognized in OCI with no recycling to profit and loss. 
Only dividends are recognized in profit and loss. 

3.3.3 Financial liabilities 

Initial Measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortized cost. All financial liabilities are recognized 

initially at fa ir value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable 
transaction costs . 

Subsequent Measurement 

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 

3.4 De recognition of financial assets and liabilities 

3.4.1 Financial Asset 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 
assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired . The 
Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer 
qualifies fo r derecognition. 

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either: 

a) The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset 

or 

b) It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows 
in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement 

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to 
receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset'), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay 
those cash flows to one or more entities (the 'eventual recipients'), when all of the following three 
conditions are met: 

~ The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventua l recipients unless it has collected 
equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-ter.m advances with the right to full 
recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates 

~ The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients 

The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without material 
delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash 
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or cash equ ivalents including interest earned, during the period between the collection date c:rnd the date 
of required remittance to the eventual recipients. 

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either: 

.. The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset 

or 

.. The Company has neither t1·ansferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, 
but has t ransferred control of the asset 

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practica l ability to 
sell t he asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that abilit y un ilaterally and 
without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer. 

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks ar:d rewards and has 
reta ined control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Company's 
cont inu ing involvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred 
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the 
Compcn1 y ha s retained . 

3.4.2 Financial Liability 

A fi nancial liability is de recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. 

Whe ~e an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 

term s., or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is 

t reated as de recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between 

the ca rrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss. 

3.5 Off!>etting 

Fi nancio! assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. Financial assets and 

liabi lities are offset, and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal 

right to offset the amounts and intends to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liabil ity 

simultaneously. in all the following circumstances: 

a. The normal course of business 

b. The event of default 

c. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counter parties. 

3.6 Impairment of financial assets 

3.6.1 Overview of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) principles 

The Company t1as created provisions on all financial assets except for financial assets classified as FVTPL, 

based or. the expected credit loss method . 

The ECL provision is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime 

expected cred it loss), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which 

case, th£• allowance is based on the 12 months' expected credit loss. 

The 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result from default events on 

financial assets that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. 
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The Company performs an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial 

instrument's credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the 

risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument. 

Based on the above process, the Company categorises its loans into three stages as described below: 

For non-_i mpaired financial instruments 

• Stage 1 is comprised of all non-impaired financial instruments which have not experienced a 

significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. A 12-rnonth ECL provision is made 

for stage 1 financial instruments. In assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly .. Ti"e 

Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the report ing 

date, with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of init ial 

recognition . 

• Stage 2 is comprised of all non-impaired financial instruments which have experienced a SICR since 

initia l recognition . The Company recognises lifetime ECL for stage 2 financial instruments. In 

subsequent reporting periods, if the credit risk of the financial instrument improves such that t here 

is no longer a SICR since initial recognition, then entities shall revert to recognizing 12 months of ECL. 

For impaired financial instruments: 

Financial instruments are dassified ;;is stage 3 when there is objective evidence of impairment as a resuit of 

one or more loss events that have occurred after initial recognition with a negative impact on the estimated 

fut ure cash flows of a loan or a portfolio of loans. The Company recognises lifetime ECL for impa ired financial 

instruments. 

3 . ~.2 The calculation of ECLs 

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows : 

Probability of Default (PD) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the like lihood of default over a given 

time horizon. 

The Company uses historical information where available to determine PD. Considering the different 

products and schemes, the Company has bifurcated its loan portfolio into various pe>ols. PD is calcu lated 

using Incremental NPA approach considering fresh slippage using historica ! information. 

Expo!iure at Default (EAD) - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, 

cuns idering expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal 

and interest, whether scheduled hy contract or otherwise, expected d•awdowns on committed facilities, and 

acu ·ued interest from missed payments. 

l oss Given Default {LGD) - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default 

occu rs ci t a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those tha t 

the lender would expect to receive. 
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Forward looking information 

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring 

in the economy and market it operates ir.. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses if there is any 

relationship between key economic trends like GDP, unemployment rates, benchmark rates set by the 

Reser1e Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company based on its 

internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be always reflective of 

such rel2tionshiµs. temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in the methodology to reflect such macro­

economic trends reasonably. 

Write-offs 

Lo;ins are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is 

generally the case when it is determined that the customer does not have assets or sources of income that 

could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. Any subsequent recoveries 

against such loans are credited to the statement of profit and loss. 

Collateral 

In the normal course of business, the Company does not take financial or non-financial item as collateral 

sectirity from the customers for the loan given. 

1.mpairment o'f Trade receivables 

The Ccmpany follows ·'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment ioss allowance on trade 

receivables. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfo lio of 

its tr<ide receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected 

life of the trade receivables. 

3. 7 Determination of fair value 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, investments at fair value at each balance sheet datP. 

Fair vaiue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

trar.sactidn between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value rneasure~ent is based on 
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

i. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

ri. in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The orincipal or tr.e most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 

when pricing the asset or liability, if market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset considers a market participant's ability to generate 

economic benefits by w:ing the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant 

thdt would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which enough 

data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising 

the use of unobservable inpui:s. 
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Th2 financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as sumrr:aris:?d belo•.tJ : 

Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the irputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices 

from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement 

date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficiem trading activities with regards to 

the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and wheri there are binding and exercisable price 

quotes available on the balance sheet date. 

Level 2 fir:ancial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are 

derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the 

instrument's life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities ln active markets, quoted 

prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted prices such as 

interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition, adjustments may be 

required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates to items that are 

corn parable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on unobservable inputs »;vh:ch 

are significant to the entire measurement, the Company will classify the instruments as l.evel 3. 

Level 3 financial instruments - Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the 

rnea.surement as whole . 

3.8 Finance cost 

Fina nce costs represents Interest expense recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the 

gross carry ing nmount of financial liabilities other than financial liabilities classified as FVTPL. 

Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recogriized as part of the carrying value of the financial 

liability ar.d amortized over the expected life using the effective interest method . These .include fees and 

commissions payable to advisers and other expenses such as external legal costs, provided these are 

incremental costs that are directly related to the issue of a financial liability. 

3.9 Other income .and expenses 

ft.ii Other income and expense are recognized in the period they occur 

3,10 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits 

with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value . 

For t he purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short- term 

de~osits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts, if any as they are considered an integral part 

of t he Company's cash management. 

3.11 Property, p'lant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment, (if any). The total cost of assets comprises its purchase price, freight, duties, taxes and any other 

incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it 

to be czip2ble of operating in the manner intended by the management. 

Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, 

as appropriate , and treated as changes in accounting estimates. 
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Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible asset are added to its gross value only if it increases 

the futl!re benefits of the existing asset, beyond its previously assessed standards of performance and cost 

can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred . 

3.11.1 Depreciation 

Ta11gible assets are s!ated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation . Cost comprises trie purchase price 

and,c.inv CJ.ttributabie cost ofbringing the asset to its working condition for its intended U$E: . 

Depreciation is charged based 011 a review by the management during the year and at the rates derived 

based o:-: the u:;eful lives of the assets as specified in Schedule II of the Ccrnpanies Act, 2013 on Writte:i 

Down Value method. All fixed assets costing individually upto Rs. 5,000 is fully depreciated by the company 

in the vear of its capitalisation. 

The estimated useful lives are as follows: 

~-a-rtic~~-~---- ------·~U-s--ef_u_l_li-fe-------1 Residual value -- . ~ 

u_~rn:ture and fixture -------+---l_O_~y~e_a_rs _____ _ __ ·-_-_-.·t.
1 

__ •2?._-:,~o. -·--·- -!, 
1-Office equipment . 5 years _ 

~ Vehicles 110 years _p_% _________ . ___ , 
[~om l?_u_ter . 3 years _ /1 5% . _ ___;__· ___ _ \ 

The residual v;ilues, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviP.wed 

at each f:nanciai year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

Property plant and equipment is de recognised on disposal or when no future ecopomic benefits are expected 

from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the 

net disi:iosal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in ot~er income I expense in the 

staternent of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognised. The date of disposal of an item of property, 

p•ant and equipment is the date the recipient obtains control of that itelm in accordance with the 

requirements for determining when a performance obligation is satisfied in Ind AS 115. 

3.12 Intangible assets 

The Company's intangib~e asset~ consist of computer software. 

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the 

expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it wi!I flow to the Company. 

lntai1gible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition ot cost. The cost of an intangible 

asset comprises its purchase prke and any directly attributable expendifure or making the asset ready for 

its intended use CJnd net of any trade discounts and rebates. Following initial recognition, intangible assets 

are 1,<:1rried at cost less any accuimulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. 
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intangible assets are amortised using the Written down value method to write down the cost of intangible 

assets to their residua! values over their estimated useful lives. Intangible assets comprising of software are 

amortised on a Written down value basis over a period of 3 years keeping residual value 5%. 

Gains or losses from derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net 

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

wrwn the asset i~ derecognised. 

3.13 Investment Proper'l:y 

Properties, held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation are clas~ifieci as investment property and 

rneasured and reported at cost; inciuding transaction costs. 

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently 

withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising 

on uerecognitlon of property is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the same period . 

The fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes accompanying these financial statements Fair 

' 'alu t"? has been determined by independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional 

qualification and has recent experience in the location and category of the investment property being valued . 

3.14 Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Company's assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be 

impaired . If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company 

estimates the asset's recoverabie amount. An asset's recoverable· amount is the higher of an asset's or cash­

generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is 

determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are large!y 

independent cf those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU 

exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable 

amount. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future ca~h flows are discounted to their present value using a pre­

tax d:scount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 

to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are considered. If no 

such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are 

corrnbora[ed by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available 

fair value indicators. 

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously 

recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company 

estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed onlv 

if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverab ie amount since the 

iast impairrne:1t loss was recognised . The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does 

not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net 

of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years . Such reversal is 
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recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case. 

the reversCll is treated as a revaluation increase. 

3.15 Post employment benefits 

3.15.1 Defined contribution schemes 

Contributions to the Employees Provident Fund Scheme maintained by the Central Government are 

accounted for on an accrual basis. Retirement ber:efit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution 

scheme . 

The · c::irripany has no obligation, other than the contribution payable under the scheme The company 

recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders 

the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service rece'ived before the balance sheet 

date exc2eds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liabiiity after 

deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for 

servic~s received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset. 

3.15.2 Defined Benefit schemes 

Gratuity 

The Co:npany provides for gratuity covering eligible employees under which a lumpsum payment is paid to 

vested emp!oyees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount 

reckoned on the respective employee's salary and his tenor of employment vvith the Company. The Company 

accour.ts for its liability for future gratuity benefits based on actuarial valuation determined at each Balance 

Sheet date by an Independent Actuary using Projected Unit Credit Method .. The Company make5 annua! 

contri.:iution to a Gratuity Fund administered by Life Insurance Company Limited and such other insurance 

com pany fron~ ~irne to time . 

The obllgat!on is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates u:>Ed 

fo r determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the market yields 

on Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date. 

An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the 

future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due 

to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to 

changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

Re-mEjasurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses (excluding amounts included in net interest on the 

net defined benefit liability), are recognized irnmediarnly in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or 

credi t to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are :10t 

rec1as:;ified to profit and loss in subsequent periods. 

3.1.6 Provisions 

Prcvi ~ions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 

past event:-:. and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 

to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation . 
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When the effect of the time value of money is material, the enterprise determines the level of provision bv 

discounting the expecteci cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to the liability . The 

expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. 

3.17 Taxes 

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax ar.d deferred tax. 

3.fl.1 CurrentTax 

Current ta:< is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a period. Taxable profit 

diffe1 s from 'profir before tax' as reported in the State1Y1ent of Profit and Loss because of items of income or 

expense that a1e ta>:able or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible in 

accordance w!tl1 applicable tax laws. 

Interest income/ expenses and penalties, if any, related to income tax are included in current tax expense . 

The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, 

hy the end of reporting date in India where the Company operates and generates taxable income. 

Current income tax 1elating to items recognised outside profit or loss ls recognised outside profit or loss 

(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the 

underlying ti"ansaction either in OCI er directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken 

in ~he tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation 

and establishes ptovisions where appropriate. 

3.11'.2 Deferrc~d tax 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences arising between the tax bases of 

assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and ~aws) 

that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply when 1he 

related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits 

if it is probable that future taxable amounts will arise to utilise those temporary differences and losses . 

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer 

prohoble 1hat the related tax benefit will be realised. 

Defer rec tax asset'.:i, and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 

asse:s Jnd liatilities and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxabie 

entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax !:abilities and assets on a net basis or 

their tax cissets and' liabilities are realised simultaneously. 

3.17.3 Goods and services tax /value added tcixes paici on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses 

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services ta~/value added taxes paid, except: 

i. When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation 

authority, in which case, the tax paid is recogn;sed as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset 

o~ as part of the expense item, as applicable 

ii. 
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The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of 

receivables or payables in the balance sheet. 

3.17.4 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) 

Minirnurn alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The 

Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that it is probable that the Company 

will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the perioa for which MAT credit can be carried 

forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income­

tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement cf profit and loss and shown as 

" MAT Credit Entitlement." The Company reviews the MAT Credit Entitlement asset at each reporting date 

and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay 

normal rax during the specified period. 

3.18 Contingent Liabilities and assets 

.A. contingent liability is a possible obligatior) that arises from past events who$e existence wi!I be confirmed 

by t he occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the coritrol of the 

Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of 

resourc.es will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent !iability also arises in extremely rare cases 

where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company 

does.no t recogni;:e a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. 

A conti ngent asset is a µossiblE°' asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed 

only by ·th-2 occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertaJn future events not wholly within the 

control of the enMy. The company does not have any contingent assets in the financial statements . 

3.19 Earnings Per Share 

The Company re arts basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with .Ind AS 33 on Earnings per 

share. 8;Jsic EPS i calc.ulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareho!ders 

(after deducting reference dividend and attributable taxes) by the we_ighted average number of equity 

shnres oucstandi g during the vear. 

For calr:uiating iluted earnings per sllare, the net profit or loss for the year attr ibutar.!e to equity 

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding dur ing the year are adjusted for the 

effects of all dliut 11e potential equ 'ty shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed r:on·1erted as of the 

beginning of the eriod, un:ess th y have been issued at a later date. In computing the dilutive earni ngs per 

share, only pot.e 1tial equity shar .5 thot are dilutive and that either reduces the earnings per share or 

inc:-e;:ises'ioss pe share are inciud"d. 

3.20 leases 

As a lessc·~ 

The ccrnpany rec 1gnises a right-a -use as$et and a l2ase liability at the lease commencement date. The righ!­

of-use a!;set is ini ia!ly measured a cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability ad,iusted for 

any lease pdyme its ;nade at orb fore the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an 

estimate of costs to dismantle an remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site 

e incentives received. 
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The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement 

date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term . The 

estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the sume basis as those of property and 

equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment iosses, if any, and 

?.djlisted fo~ certain re measurements of the lease liability. 

The :ease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at t he 

commencement date, di :~counteci using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily 

determined, company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the company uses its incremental borrowing 

rate as the discount rate. 

!.f:ase payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the followir.g: 

-··Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments; 

- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at 

the commencement date; 

- ~.rnounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and 

-- The 0xercise price under a purchase option that the company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease 

payments in an optio'nal renewal period ifthe company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, 

:ind pera lties for early termination of a lease unless the company is reasonably certain not to terminate 

e;:irly. 

Short-term lease!> and leases of low-value assets 

The company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and rease liabilities for short te.rm leases of real 

estate properties that have a lease term of 12 months. The company recognises the lease payments 

associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease. 

3.21 Cash flow statement 

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby net profits before tax is adjusted for the effects of 

transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments 

and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from 

regu!ar revenue generating (operating activities), investing and financing activities of the Company are 

segregated . 

4 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of fi;iancial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to make 

judgments, est:mates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of rE:venues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the 

reportir<g period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 

accounting estimates are recogn1ised in the period in which the estimates are. revised and future periods are 

affected. Although the:;e estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of current events and 

actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcome.s re.quiring a 

rnc.terial adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. 
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in particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critiul judgments in applying 

accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial 

statements is included in the following notes: 

4.1 Business Model Assessment 

Classification und measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business model 

test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects 'low groups of financial assets are 

managed together to achieve a business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant 

evidenCf: including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the 

ri~ks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the 

assets are co:npensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value 

through other comprehensive income that are de recognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason 

for the ir disposCJI and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the 

asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company's continuous assessment of whether the business model 

for which the rema!ning financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate 

whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those 

assets. 

4.2 Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities 

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined 

using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that rnay differ from 

actual d-eveloprnents in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary 

increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a 

defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed 

at each reporting date. 

4.3 Fair value rneasurement: 

Vvnc:n the fair va lues of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be 

measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using various valuation 

techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this 

is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations 

of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumpt ions about these facto rs could 
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. 

4.fi. Impairment of ioans portfolio 

The m£asurement of impa irment losses across all categories of financial as~ets requires judgement the 

estimation ohhe amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment 

losse$ and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by several 

fa~tors, chc.nges in which can result in different levels of allowances. 

It h-3s been the Company's policy to regularly review its models in the context ot actual loss experience and 

adju'.,;t when necessary. 
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4.5 Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method 

The Company's EIR methodology, recognises interest income I expense using a rate of return that represents 

the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given I taken and 

recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the 

product life cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and charges). 

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviou r and life­

cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to India's base rate and other fee income/expense that 

are integra ! parts of the instrument. 

4.6 Other estimates: 

These include contingent liabilities, useful lives of tangible and intangible assets etc. 

5. Standard issued but not yet effective 

Ministry of corporate affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is 
no such notification which would have been applicable from Aprill, 2020. 

Notes on dccounts form part of final accounts For and on behalf of Board of Directors . 
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6: Cash and cash equivalents (Rs. In millions) 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31 2020 March 31, 2019 
Cash on hand 18.75 15.15 

Balances with Banks 

- in current accounts 1,400.53 1,873.08 

- Bank deposit with maturity of less than 3 300.00 300.00 

months 

Total 1,719.28 2,188.23 

Short-term deposits are made for period varying between one day to three months, 

depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company, and earn interest at the 

respective short term deposit rates. 

The Company has not taken any bank overdraft, therefore the cash and cash equivalent for 

cash flow statement is same as cash and cash equ ivalent given above. 

7: Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents (Rs. In millions) 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
Deposit with original maturity for more - 100.00 

than three months but less than twelve 

months 

Balances with banks to the extent held as 1,423.79 994.87 

security against the borrowings# 

Total 1,423.79 1,094.87 

# It represents deposits maintained as cash collateral against term loans availed from banks 

and financial institutions and earn interest at the respective fixed deposit rates. 
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8: Trade Receivables (Rs. in millions) 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, March 31, 

2020 2019 

(i) Trade receivables 

Receivable considered good - Secured - -

Receivable considered good - Unsecured 1.60 8.46 

Receivables which have significant increase in - -

credit risk 

Receivables - credit impaired - -

Total 1.60 8.46 

Provision for impairment for: 
Receivable considered good - Unsecured - -

Receivables which have significant increase in - -
credi t risk 
Receivables - credit impaired - -

Total Net receivable 1.60 8.46 

Trade receivables includesRs. 0.96/- million receivable from related party refer Note 42 for more details. 

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms ranging from 30 days to 60 days from t he date of 

invoice . During the year 2019-20, INR Nil (2018-19: INR Nil) was recognised as provision for expected credit losses on 

trade receivable. 

(Rs. in millions) 

Trade receivables I days past due Current 1-30 days 31-60 days 61- 91- More Total 

past due past due 90 360 than 

days days 360 

past past days 

due due past 

due 

ECL rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 50% 100% 

March 31, 2020 Estimated total gross carrying 1.56 0.04 1.60 

amount 

ECL-Simplified approach - -
Net carrying amount - 1.56 0.04 - - - 1.60 

March 31, 2019 Estimated total gross carrying 6.49 1.97 8.46 

amount 

ECL-Si mplified approach - -
Net ca rrying amount - 6.49 1.97 - - - 8.46 
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9 :Loans (Rs. in millions) 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31 2020 March 31 2019 

Amortised Cost At Fair value Total Amortised At Fair value Total 
Through Other Through profit Designated at Cost Through Other Through Designated at 

Comprehensive or loss Through profit Comprehensive profit or loss Through profit 
Income or loss Income or loss 

(A) 

i) Receivables under financing activities 19,818.79 1,429.36 - - 21,248.15 15,399.30 1,239.27 - - 16,638.56 

ii) Staff Loan 9.32 - - - 9.32 13.08 - - - 13.08 
Total (A) - Gross 19,828.11 1,429.36 - - 21,257.47 15,412.38 1,239.27 - - 16,651.64 
Less : Impairment loss allowance (358.35) (10.44) - - (368.79) (225.00) (38.99) - - (263.99) 

Total (A) - Net 19,469.76 1,418.92 - - 20,888.68 15,187.37 1,200.28 - - 16,387.65 

(B) 
I} Secured by tangible assets and intangible 

assets 
II) Covered by Bank I Government Guarantees - - - - - - - - - -

Ill} Unsecured - - - - - -
i) Receivables under financing activities 19,818.79 1,429.36 - - 21,248.15 15,399.30 1,239.27 - - 16,638.56 

ii) Staff loan 9.32 - - - 9.32 13.08 - - - 13.08 
Tota l (Ill} - Gross 19,828.11 1,429.36 - - 21,257.47 15,412.38 1,239.27 - - 16,651.64 
Less : Impairment loss allowance (358.35) (10.44) - - (368.79) (225.00) (38.99) - - (263.99) 

Total {Ill) - Net 19,469.76 1,418.92 - - 20,888.68 15,187.37 1,200.28 - - 16,387.65 

Total (1+11+111} - Net 19,469.76 1,418.92 - - 20,888.68 15,187.37 1,200.28 - - 16,387.65 

{C} 

i) Public Sector - -
ii) Others 19,828.11 1,429.36 - - 21,257.47 15,412.38 1,239.27 - - 16,651.64 

Total ( C) - Gross 19,828.11 1,429.36 - - 21,257.47 15,412.38 1,239.27 - - 16,651.64 
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance ( C) (358.35) (10.44) - - (368.79) (225.00) (38.99) - - (263.99} 

Total ( C )- Net 19,469.76 1,418.92 - - 20,888.68 15,187.37 1,200.28 - - 16,387.65 
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Receivables under financing activities 

Credit Quality of Assets 
The table below shows the credit qual ity and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Company's internal credit rating system and year-end stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of 
impairment allowances. Details of the Company's internal grading system are explained in Note 46 and policies on ECL allowances are set out in Note 3.6. 

(Rs. in millions) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 

Internal rating grade 

Performing 

High grade 20,940.25 20,940.25 16,336.00 - - 16,336.00 

Standard grade 26.05 26.05 35.21 - - 35.21 

Sub-standard grade 26.21 26.21 - 42.61 - 42.61 

Past due but not impaired 29.12 29.12 - 26.74 - 26.74 
Non - performing - - - - -
Individually impaired 235.84 235.84 - - 211.08 211.08 

Total 20,966.30 55.33 235.84 21,257.47 16,371.21 69.35 211.08 16,651.64 

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to receivables under financing activities is, as follows: 

(Rs. in millions) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 

Gross carrying amount opening balance 16,371.21 69.36 211.08 16,651.65 11,308.79 74.31 99.62 11,482.72 
New assets originated or purchased (net of repayment) 16,156.63 - - 16,156.63 13,582.61 - - 13,582.61 
Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) (11,255.61) (65.12) (102.34) (11,423.07) (8,213.44) (78.78) (66.10) (8,358.33) 

Transfers to Stage 1 7.15 (5.93) (1.22) - 15.54 (14.97) (0.57) 0.00 

Transfers to Stage 2 (93.70) 94.56 (0.86) - (112.18) 112.30 (0.12) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (219.38) (37.54) 256.92 - (210.11) (23.50) 233.61 -
Amounts written off - - (127.74) (127.74) - - (55.36) (55.36) 

Gross carrying amount closing balance 20,966.30 55.33 235.84 21,257.47 16,371.21 69.36 211.08 16,651.65 
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Reconciliation of ECL balance is given below: (Rs. in millions) 

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2020 For the year ended March 31, 2019 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 

ECL allowance - opening balance 76.00 0.44 187.55 263.99 46.55 0.24 93.04 139.82 

New assets originated or purchased 147.50 - - 147.50 59.09 - - 59.09 

Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) (55 .80) (5.44) (3.15) (64.39) (28.94) (0.28) (10.35) (39.57) 

Transfers to Stage 1 1.11 (0.03) (1.09) - 0.58 (0.05) (0.53) 

Transfers to Stage 2 (5 .09) 5.86 (0.77) - (0.33) 0.45 (0.11) 

Transfers to Stage 3 (11.90) (0.17) 12.07 - (0.95) 0.09 0.86 

Impact on year end ECL of exposures transferred between stages during the year 149.43 149.43 - - 160.01 160.01 

Amounts written off - - (127.74) (127.74) - - (55.36) (55.36) 

ECL allowance - closing balance 151.83 0.66 216.30 368.79 76.00 0.44 187.55 263.99 

ECL provision is not creoted on stoff loon os there is no credit risk. Any omount due if not poid is deducted from solory. 

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety but where the Company has continuing involvement 

The Company has sold some loans and advances measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, as a source of finance. As per terms of the deal, risk and reward has been transferred to the customer. 

Hence, as per the derecognition criteria of IND AS 109, including transfer of substantially all risks and rewards relating to assets being transferred to the buyer being met, the assets have been derecognised. 

The table below summarises that carrying amounts of the derecognised financial assets 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Carrying amount of derecognised financial assets 5,185.27 1,780.96 

# 

Interest only strip 385.27 118.51 

Gain/(loss) from derecognition 266.76 118.51 

#In Previous year derocognised financial assets figures were changed from gross value to carrying value. 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
{Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety 

The Company uses securitisations as a source of finance and a means of risk transfer. The Company securitised its microfinance loans to different entities. These entities are not related to the Company. Also, the 

Company neither holds any equity or other interest nor control them. 

As per the terms of the agreement, the Company is exposed to first loss amounting to 5% to 10% of the amount securitised and therefore continues to be exposed to significant risk and rewards relating to the 

underlying microfinance loans. These receivables are not derecognised and proceeds received are recorded as a financial liability under borrowings. 

The table below outlines the carrying amounts and fair values of ;;II financial assets transferred that are not derecognised in their entirety and associated liabilities. 

(Rs. in millions) 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Carrying amount of assets re - recognised due to 1,987.55 4,061.11 

non transfer of assets 

Carrying amount of associated liabilities 1,288.30 3,617.76 

The carrying amount of above assets and liabilities is a reasonable approximation of fair value. 

Interest in unconsolidated structured entity: 

These are entities which are not consolidated because the Company does not control them through voting rights, contract, funding agreements, or other means 

The following table describes the types of structured entities that the Company does not consolidate but in which it holds an interest. 

Type of Structured Entity Nature and Purpose Interest held by the Company 

To generate 

- Servicing fee 

Securitisation Vehicle for loans - funding for the Company's lending activities - Credit Enhancement provided by the Company 

- Spread through sale of assets to investors - Excess interest spread 

- Fees for servicing loan 

(Rs. in millions) 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Aggregate value of accounts sold to securitisation 2419.35 4888.38 

company 

Aggregate consideration 2116.28 4342.56 

Quantum of credit enhancement in the form of 157.12 289.79 

deposits 

Servicing fees 2.00 4.50 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

10: Other financial assets (Rs. in millions) 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Security deposits 19.01 13.25 
Receivable towards assignment 376.25 355.12 
transactions 

Interest only strip 385.27 118.51 
Interest accrued on fixed deposits with 91.52 71.55 
banks 
Total 872.05 558.43 

11: Investment property (Rs. in millions) 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Gross carrying amount 

Opening gross carrying amount 1.10 1.10 

Addition during the year - -
Disposal - -
Closing gross carrying amount 1.10 1.10 

Accumulated depreciation 

Opening accumulated depreciation - -
amount 

Depreciation charged during the period - -

Closing accumulated depreciation - -
amount 

Net carrying amount 1.10 1.10 

The fair value of investment property is Rs. 1.16 millions as determined by an external 

independent property valuer having appropriate recognised professional qualifications. 

There is no change in fair value of property as compared to previous year. 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited} 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

12: Property, plant and equipment 

Particulars Office Computers 

equipment 

Cost: 

At April 1, 2018 4.15 32.52 

Additions 13.75 25.76 
Disposals 0.03 -
At March 31, 2019 17.87 58.28 

Additions 18.00 34.00 

Disposals 0.48 -

At March 31, 2020 35.39 92.28 

Accumulated depreciation 

At April 1, 2018 2.33 15.28 

Disposals 0.02 -

Depreciation charge for the year ended 4.96 16.77 

31 March, 2019 

At March 31, 2019 7.27 32.05 

Disposals 0.34 -
Depreciation charge for the year ended 13.34 27.27 

31 March, 2020 

At March 31, 2020 20.28 59.32 

Net book value: 

At March 31, 2019 10.59 26.23 

At March 31, 2020 15.11 32.96 

13: Right of use of assets (Rs. in millions) 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Opening carrying value 38.67 -

Addition during the year 85.42 -

Depreciation for the year (32.20) -

Closing Carrying value 91.89 -

(Rs in millions) 

Furniture & Vehicles Total 

Fixtures 

5.94 1.41 44.03 

5.10 - 44.60 

- - 0.03 

11.04 1.41 88.60 

-

7.60 0.06 59.66 

- - 0.48 

18.64 1.47 147.78 

2.93 0.48 21.02 

- - 0.02 

4.55 0.31 26.59 

7.47 0.79 47.59 

- - 0.34 

5.97 0.22 46.79 

13.44 1.01 94.05 

3.57 0.62 41.01 

5.20 0.46 53.73 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Indian Accounting Standard 116 ('Ind AS 116'), Leases, with effect from April 1, 2019 The 

Company has elected to apply this Standard to its leases using modified retrospective method from April 1, 2019. which has resulted in 

right of use of assets and corresponding lease liability of 38.67 millions as on April 01, 2019. Refer note 41 (C) for further disclosure. 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

14: Other Intangible Assets {Rs. in millions) 

Particulars Computer 
Software 

Cost: 

At April 1, 2018 39.66 

Additions 13.48 
Disposals -
At March 31, 2019 53.14 
Additions 13.75 
Disposals -
At March 31, 2020 66.89 

Accumulated amortisation 

At April 1, 2018 24.39 

Amortisation charge for the year ended March 31, 2019 17.61 

At March 31, 2019 42.00 

Disposals -
Amortisation charge for the year ended March 31, 2020 11.80 

At March 31, 2020 53.80 

Net book value: 

At March 31, 2019 11.14 

At March 31, 2020 13.09 

15: Other Non-financial assets (Rs. in millions) 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Prepaid expenses 35.36 16.24 

Insurance claim receivable 6.02 6.37 

Other Receivables 28.89 16.98 

Total 70.27 39.60 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

16: Debt Securities 

Particulars 

At amortised cost 

Bonds/ Debentures 

Secured Non-Convertible Debentures 203 .19 

Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures -Listed 166.71 

Total (A) 369.90 

Debt securities in India 369.90 

Debt securities outside India -

As at 

March 31, 2020 

At fair value 

through profit or 

loss 

-

-

-
-

-

(Rs. in millions) 

As at 

March 31, 2019 

Designated at At amortised cost At fair value through Designated at fair 

fair value profit or loss value through 

through profit profit or loss 

or loss 

- 931.33 - -

- 1,348.56 - -

- 2,279.88 - -
- 2,279.88 - -

- - - -



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financia l statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

Details of Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures 

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2020 

Secured Non-Convertible Debentures 

12% Senior, Secured, Redeemable, Rated, Unlisted, -

Taxable, Non-Convertible Debentures 

11.6% Senior, Secured, Redeemable, Rated, Liisted, 50.00 

Taxable, Non-Convertible Debentures 

11.4% Senior, Secured, Redeemable, Rated, Listed, 153.19 

Taxable, Non-Convertible Debentures 

Total 203.19 

Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures -Listed 

11.68% Unsecured, Fully Paid, Rated, Listed, Senior, -

Redeemable, Taxable, Non-Convertible Debentures 

11.98% Unsecured, Fully Paid, Rated, Listed, Senior, 166.71 

Redeemable, Taxable, Non-Convertible Debentures 

Total 166.71 

As at 

March 31, 2019 

133.03 

250.00 

548.30 

931.33 

1,348.56 

-

1,348.56 

Secured debentures are secured by hypothecation of Receivables under Financing activity. 

#Nominal value per debenture and total number of debentures are in full numbers. 

Date of Nominal value per Total number of 
redemption debenture# debentures# 

30-03-2020 10,00,000.00 400.00 

22-05-2020 1,00,000.00 5,000.00 

17-07-2020 1,00,000.00 10,000.00 

26-03-2020 10,00,000.00 2,500.00 

31-07-2021 1,00,000.00 2,000.00 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

17: Borrowings (other than debt securities) 

Particulars 

At amortised cost 

(a) Term loan 

(i) from banks# 15,088.82 

(ii) from Financial Institution 1,156.55 

(iii) Securitisation 1,288.30 

(b) Loans repayable on demand 

(i) from banks {OD & CC) 

Cash Credit ## 8.01 

Total (A) 17,541.68 

Borrowings in India 17,541.68 

Borrowings outside India -

Total (B) 17,541.68 

As at 

March 31, 2020 

At fair value 

through profit or 

loss 

-

-

-

-

-

-
-

#Secured by way of specific charge on receivables created out of the proceeds of the loan 

##Secured by hypothecation of Receivables under Financing activity 

(Rs. in millions) 

As at 

March 31, 2019 

Designated at At amortised cost At fair value through Designated at fair 

fair value profit or loss value through 

through profit profit or loss 

or loss 

- 7,734.42 - -

- 1,230.21 - -

- 3,617.76 - -

- 60.87 - -

12,643.25 

- 12,643.25 - -

- - - -

- 12,643.25 - -



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

18: Subordinated Liabilities 

Particulars 

At amortised cost 

Preference Shares other than those that qualify as -

Equity 

Subordinated Liabilities - Debentures - Unlisted 560.00 

Subordinated Liabilities - Debentures - Listed 234.09 

Subordinated Liabilities - Loan 250.00 

Total (A) 1,044.09 

Subordinated Liabilities in India 1,044.09 

Subordinated Liabilities outside India -

Total (B) 1,044.09 

Detail of Redeemable Preference Shares 

As at 

March 31, 2020 

At fair value 

through profit or 

loss 

-

-

-

-

-
-

-

-

Particulars March 31, 2020 

No. of shares Amount 

At the beginning of the year 50.00 500.00 

Issued during the year - -

Redeemed during the year (50.00) {500.00) 

Outstanding at the end of the year - -

(Rs. in millions) 

As at 

March 31, 2019 

Designated at At amortised cost At fair value through Designated at fair 
fair value profit or loss value through 

through profit profit or loss 
or loss 

- 500.00 - -

- 170.00 - -

- 235.31 - -

- - - -

- 905.31 - -
- 905.31 - -

- - - -

- 905.31 - -

(Rs. in millions) 

March 31, 2019 

No. of shares Amount 

31.00 310.00 

19.00 190.00 
- -

50.00 500.00 

During the Year 2019-20, The company has repaid its 50 millions non convertible redeemable cumulative preference shares of Rs . 10 each aggregating to Rs. 500 millions. 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

Detail of Subordinated Debt 

Particulars 

Subordinated Liabilities - Debentures - Unlisted 

15% Unsecured, Subordinated, Redeemable, Non­

convertible Debentures 

12% Unsecured, Redeemable, Rated, Unlisted, 

Subordinated, Taxable, Non-Convertible Debentures 

14.50% Unsecured, Redeemable, Rated, Unlisted, 

Subordinated, Taxable,Non-Convertible Debentures 

14.50% Unsecured, Redeemable, Rated, Unlisted, 

Subordinated, Taxable,Non-Convertible Debentures 

Total 

Subordinated Liabilities - Debentures - listed 

11.5% Unsecured, Redeemable, Rated, listed, 

Subordinated, Taxable, Non-Convertible Debentures 

Total 

Subordinated liabilities - Loan 

14.50% Unsecured, Subordinated Loan 

Total 

As at 

March 31, 2020 

100.00 

70.00 

240.00 

150.00 

560.00 

234.09 

234.09 

250.00 

250.00 

As at 

March 31, 2019 

100.00 

70.00 

170.00 

235.31 

235.31 

#Nominal value per debenture and total number of debentures are in full numbers. 

Date of I Nominal value per,Total number 
redemption debenture # debentures# 

of 

29-03-2021 I 10,00,000.00 100 

31-07-2023 10,00,000.00 70.00 

03-12-2025 1,00,000.00 2,400.00 

15-05-2026 1,00,000.00 1,500.00 

31-05-2023 1,000.00 2,50,000.00 

23-12-2025 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

Terms of repayment of long term borrowings outstanding as at 31 March 2020 

Maturity pattern of Debt securities .. 
Type of Loan Secured - NCO Due within 1 year Due 1 to 2 years 

Original Maturity of Coupon rate No of Amount Amount 

loan lnstallme 

nts 

Quarterly repayment 8%-10% - - - -
schedule 10%-12% 8.00 312.99 2.00 56.92 

12%-14% - - - -

14%-15% - - - -
Total 8.00 312.99 2.00 56.92 

Maturity pattern of term loan from Bank .. 
Type of Loan Term Loan - Bank Due within 1 year Due 1 to 2 years 

Original Maturity of Coupon rate No of Amount No of Amount 

loan lnstallme lnstallme 

nts nts 

Monthly repayment 8%-10% 25.00 210.27 12.00 166.01 

schedule 10%-12% 181.00 2,153.98 97.00 1,087.21 

12%-14% 

14%-15% 

Quarterly repayment 8%-10% 21.00 741.40 17.00 586.83 

schedule 10%-12% 162.00 4,796.94 88.00 2,704.27 

12%-14% 

14%-15% - - - -
At the end of tenure I 8%-10% - - - -

On demand 10%-12% 3.00 762.50 

12%-14% - - -
14%-15% - - - -

Total 392.00 8,665.09 214.00 4,544.32 

Due 2 to 3 years 

No of Amount 

lnstallme 

nts 

-
-

-

- -
- -

Due 2 to 3 years 

No of Amount 

Install me 

nts 

12.00 166.38 

33.00 271.84 

-

-
44.00 1,413.42 

- -

- -
-

- -
- -

89.00 1,851.64 

(Rs. in millions) 

Due 3 to 4 years Due 4 to 5 years Due 5 to 10 years Total 

No of Amount No of Amount No of Amount No of Amount 
Install Install Install lnstallme 
ments men ts ments nts 

- - - - -
- - - 10.00 369.90 
- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - 10.00 369.90 

(Rs. in millions) 

Due 3 to 4 years Due 4 to 5 years Due S to 10 years Total 
No of Amount No of Amount No of Amount No of Amount 
Install Install Install lnstallme 
men ts ments ments nts 

2.00 27.77 - - - 51.00 570.43 
- - 311.00 3,513.03 
- - - -
- - -

- - - - - 38.00 1,328.23 
- - - - - 294.00 8,914.63 

- -

- - - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - 3.00 762.50 
- - - - - -
- - - - - -

2.00 27.77 - - 697.00 15,088.82 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

Maturity pattern of term loan from Financial Institution 

Type of Loan Term Loan - NBFC Due within 1 year 

Original Maturity of Coupon rate No of Amount 

loan lnstallme 

nts 

Monthly repayment 8%-10% 10.00 1S3.49 

schedule 10%-12% 46.00 S67.11 

12%-14% -
14%-1S% -

Quarterly repayment 8%-10% -
schedule 10%-12% 1.00 12.48 

12%-14% 

14%-1S% -

Total 57.00 733.08 

Maturity pattern of term loan - Securitisation . . 
Type of loan Term Loan - PTC Due within 1 year 

Original Maturity of Coupon rate No of Amount 

loan lnstallme 

nts 

Monthly repayment 8%-10% SS.DO 1,288.30 

schedule 
10%-12% - -

12%-14% - -
14%-1S% -

Total 55.00 1,288.30 

Due 1 to 2 years Due 2 to 3 years 

No of Amount No of Amount 

Install me lnstallme 

nts nts 

12.00 18S.72 10.00 lSS.74 

10.00 82.02 

-
-

-

- - -

22.00 267.73 10.00 155.74 

Due 1 to 2 years Due 2 to 3 years 

No of Amount No of Amount 

lnstallme lnstallme 

nts nts 

- -

- - -

- - -
- - -

- -

(Rs. in millions) 

Due 3 to 4 years Due 4 to 5 years Due 5 to 10 years Total 
No of Amount No of Amount No of Amount No of Amount 
Install Install Install Install me 
ments ments ments nts 

- - - - 32.00 494.94 
- - - - 56.00 649.13 
- - - - -0.00 
- - - - - -
- - - - - - -

- - - - 1.00 12.48 
- - - - - -

- - - - -
- - - 89.00 1,156.55 

(Rs. in millions) 

Due 3 to 4 years Due 4 to 5 years Due S to 10 years Total 
No of Amount No of Amount No of Amount No. of Amount 

Install Install Install installme 
ments men ts ments nts 

- - - 55.00 1,288.30 

- - - - - -
- - - - -
- - - -

- - - - - 55.00 1,288.30 
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BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

19: Other Financial liabilities 
Partitulars As at 

March 31, 2020 

ln terE:~t accrued but not due on borrowings 90.42 
Preference dividend -
Payable towards assignment transactior.s 885.10 
Total 975.52 

20: Provisions 
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2020 

Pro-vision for employee benefits 

- Gratuity 7.50 

··Others 44.00 

Provision for other losses 6.57 
-· 
Total 58.07 

Movement of provfaions other than employee benefit during the year: 
The movemer. t in provisions during 2019-20 and 2018-19 is, as follows : 

Particulars 

-
1,2018 At April 

Ai"ising d 

Utilized 

wing the year 

during the year 

h 31, 2019 AtM;Hc 

. .\ris ir.g d 
Util'zed 

At Marc 

uring the year 

oL;ring tt>e year 

h 31., 2020 
w•--- ----·WWW 

{Rs. in millions) 

Others 

Amount 

-
9.~o 

-

9.60 
0.64 

(3.67) 

6.57 -

{Rs. in millions) 

As at 

March 31, 2019 

101.10 

37.73 

357 .. 83 
491.66 

{Rs. in millions) 

As at 

March 31, 2019 

5.46 

31.85 
9.60 

46.91 

21: Other Non-financial liabilities (Rs. in millions) 
Particula;;--·~~~~~~~..-~~A-s_a_t~~at 

March 31, 2020 I Mar.ch 31, 2019 --- ~---- ---------- - · -----·- -
Statutory Jues payable 17.95 15.83 

Lease !i2bilities 96.05 

!Employees ravable 37 .38 25 .12 

6.S4 1insu:-anc2 premi um payable 

t
· ~Hlie r non fin ~~~~_iJ a b i lities _______________ Ei_S_.9_6_-+-____ 2_2_.4_5-1 

Total 220.34 -~~.J 
----"""-"--~·~ .... .----,.~-------·--------~·----



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 

22: Equity share capital 

Particulars 

Authorised: 

10,00,00,000 (PY 5,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 

3,75,20,524 (PY 3,75,20,524) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 

Tota I Equity 

(Rs. in millions) 

As at As at 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

1,000.00 500.00 

375.21 375.21 

375.21 375.21 

During the year, Authorised Preference Share Capital of the Company amounting to Rs . 500 millions is reclassified to Authorised Equity Share Capital consisting of 5,00,00,000 shares of 

Rs. 10 each . 

Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 
-

Particulars No. in millions Rs. in millions 

At April 1, 2018 24.65 246.47 

Issued during the year 12.87 128.74 

At March 31, 2019 37.52 375.21 

Issued during the year - -

At March 31, 2020 37.52 375.21 

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs . 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays 

dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of 

liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will 

be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

-- ·-- -- --.--- --- -- - ------ - -- - - - -- --- - - - - - --- - -- - - -- --

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 

No. in millions % holding in the class No. in millions % holding in the class 

Muthoot Finance Limited (Holding Company) 26.27 70.01 26.27 70.01 
Sarvam Financial Inclusion Trust, Kancheepuram 6.58 17.52 6.58 17.52 
Maj Invest Financial Inclusion Fund II K/S 4.15 11.05 4.15 11.05 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
{Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 

23: Other equity 
Particulars 

Statutory reserve (Pursuant to section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 
1934) 

Opening balance 

Add: Transfer from surplus balance in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
Closing balance 

Securities Premium Account 

Opening balance 

Add: Securities premium received during the year 
Closing balance 

Debenture Redemption Reserve 

Opening balance 

Add: Amount transferred from surplus in the statement of profit and loss 

Less: Amourit trilnsferred to surplus in the statement of profit and loss 

Closing balance 

Capital Hedemptior. Reserve(CRR) 

Opening balance 

Add : Amount Transfer during the year 

Closing balance 

General Reserve 

Opening balance 

Add : Amount transferred from surplus in the statement of profit and loss 

Closing balance 

Other Comprehensive income 

Opening balance 

Other comprehensive during the year (net of tax) 
Closing balance (net of tax) 

Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss 

Opening balance 

Add: Profit for the period 

Less Appropriation :-

Dividend on equity shares 

Tax on dividend on equity shares 

Transfer to/(from) debenture redemption reserve 

Transfer to Statutory Reserve 

Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve 

Other Add itions I Deductions during the year 

Total appropriations 

Closing balance 

Total 

(Rs in millions) 

As at As at 
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

--

264.58 118.88 
198.00 145.71 
462.58 264.58 

2,384.99 495.48 
- 1,889.51 

2,384.99 2,384.99 

- I 88.31 
- -

- (88.31) 

- -

500:00 I 
.. 

-
500.00 -

0.01 0.01 

- -

0.01 0.01 

12.96 4.05 

(1.15) 8.91 

11.81 12.96 

964.01 303.17 

989.99 728.53 

(18.76) -

(3 .86) -

- 88.31 

(198.00) {145.71) 

(500.00) -
10.30 {10.30) 

{710.31) {67.69) 

1,243.68 964.01 

4,603.07 3,626.55 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

24: Nature and purpose of reserve 

Securities Premium Reserve: Tt11s Reserve represents the premium on issue of shares and can be utilized in 
accordance with the provislon5 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Retained earnings: This Reserve represents the cumulative profits of the Company. This Reserve can be utilized in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies .Act, 2013. 

Debent•Jre Redemption Reserve: The Company is not required to create Debenture redemption reserve in terms of 

the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 read with the Companies (Share Capital ar.d Debentures) 

Amendment Rules, 2019 as th ,2 Debentures of the Company are privately placed. 

Capital Redemption Reserve: The Company has recognised Capital Redemptiori Reserve on redemption of Non· 

Convertible Redeemable Preference Shcires frorn its retained earnings. The amount in Capital Redemption ReservE is 

equal to nominal arnount of the Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares redeemed. The Company may issue 

fully paid up bonus shares to its members out of the capital redemption reserve account. 

Statutory reserve: Th is reserves is created by an appropriation and is required to mairit.ain on its balance sheet with 

respect to the unmatured obligations (i.e., expected future claims) of the company. 

General Heserve: This Reserve is created by an appropriation from one component of equity (generciily retained 

earnings) to another, not being an item of Other Comprehensive Income. The same can be utilized by the Company in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Other comprehensive income reserve: The Company recognises changes in the fair value of debt instruments held 

with business .:ibjective of collect and sell in other comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated in OC! 

reserve within equity. The Company transfers amounts from this reserve to the statement of profit and loss when the 

debt instrument is sold. Any impairment loss on such instruments is reclassified immediately to the stat2ment of profit 

;:;nd loss. 

25: Dividend paid and proposed (Rs. in millions) 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
-·------ -
Final dividend for fiscal year 2019 18.76 -
DDT paid for fiscal year 2019 3.86 

Interim dividend for fiscal year 2020 - -

The Board of Directors recommended a final dividend of Rs.0.60/- per equity share for the financial year ended March 

31, 2020. The payment is subject to the apprcval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual Generna! meeting of the 

Company. 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE UMITED 
(formerly known as Belstar Invest ment ancl Finance Private Limited ) 

Notes to financial statement s for the period ended March 31, 2020 

26: Interest income 

- I For the year ended March 31, 2020 
Particulars On Finandal Assets 1 On Financial Assets interest Income 

measured at fair measured at an Financial 

value through OCI Amortised Cost Assets classified 

I at fair value 

''"'°""on loon< 
I 

through profit or 

loss 

Interest income on loan 147.51 4,399.63 -

Interest income from fixed deposits - 99.99 -

Other interest income - 2.32 -

Total 147.51 4,501.94 -

Total 

4,547.14 

99.99 

2.32 

4,649.45 

(Rs. in millions) 

For the year ended March 31, 2019 

On Financial On Interest 

I 
Total 

Assets measured Financial Income on 

at fair value Assets Financial 

through OCI measured Assets 

at classified at 

Amortised fair value 

Cost throue:h PL 

107.24 3,290.51 - 3,397.75 
- 61.96 - 61.96 
- 1.66 - 1.66 

107.24 3,354.13 - 3,461.37 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

27: Sale of services (Rs. in millions) 
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Commission fees 10.64 26.59 
Sale of services 10.64 26.59 

Fee income that are recognised over a certain - -

period oftime 

Fee income that are recognised at point in time 10.64 26.59 

Sale of services 10.64 26.59 

Geographical markets 
India 10.64 26.59 
Outside India - --
Total 10.64 26.59 

28: Net gain on fair value changes (Rs. in millions) 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

(A) Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair 

value through profit or loss 

(i) On trading portfolio - -

- Investments 66.75 64.62 
- Derivatives - -

- Others - -

Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 66.75 64.62 

Fair Value cha nges: 
- Realised 66.75 64.62 

- Unrealised - -

--
Total Ne·c gain/(loss) on fair value changes 66.75 64.62 

29: Other Income (Rs. in millions) 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

"--'------- -----
Bad debt recovery 13.23 5.15 

Other incorne 0.64 4.44 .____. 
Total 13.87 9.59 ·-



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

30: Finance Cost 

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2020 

On Financial On Financial 

liabilities measured liabilities measured 

at fair value at Amortised Cost 

through profit or 

loss 

Interest Expense on Borrowings: 

Interest on borrowings - 1,515.81 

Interest on debt securities - 192.60 

Interest on subordinate liabi lities - 50.99 

Dividend on preference shares (including taxes) - 25.57 

Interest on Lease liability - 10.02 

Other charges - 4.13 

- -

Total - 1,799.12 

31: Impairment of financial instruments 

(Rs. in millions) 

For the year ended March 31, 2019 

On Financial On Financial 

liabilities liabilities 

measured at fair measured at 

value through Amortised Cost 

profit or loss 

- 1,046.21 

- 338.47 

- 51.76 

- 55.47 

- -
- -
- -

- 1,491.91 

The below table show impairment loss on financial instruments charge to statement of profit and loss based on category of financial 

instrument: 

{Rs. in millions) 

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2020 For the year ended March 31, 2019 

On Financial On Financial On Financial On Financial 

instruments instruments instruments instruments 

measured at fair measured at measured at fair measured at 

value through OCI Amortised Cost value through OCI Amortised Cost 

Loans {28.55) 133.35 32.46 91.71 

Bad Debts Written Off - 127.74 - 55.36 
Investments - - - -

Other Assets - (3.04) - 4.10 

Total {28.55) 258.05 32.46 151.17 

32: Employee Benefit Expenses (Rs. in millions) 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

'''"'" eod w,r 932.51 557.10 

Contributions to Provident and Other Funds 79.35 36.17 

Staff Welfare Ex enses 39.07 23.05 

Total 1,050.93 616.32 

33: Depreciatic m, amortization and impairment (Rs. in millions) 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Depreciation of Tangible Assets 46.80 26.59 

Amortization of Intangib le Assets 11.80 17 .61 

Depreciation on right to use asset 32.20 -

Total 90.80 44.20 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

34:0therExpenses (Rs. in millions) 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Rent 19.76 31.63 
Electricity Cha rges 6.86 4.13 
Business Promot ion Expenses 14.11 7.23 
Bank charges 18.61 7.72 
Repa irs to Build ings 14.43 9.85 
Repa irs to Machinery 16.99 14.23 
Repai rs to Others - 0.17 
Communicat ion expense 24.06 14.99 
Postage and courier 3.61 2.95 
Printing and Stationery 18.42 16.47 
Rates & Taxes 7.37 5.69 
Legal & Professiona l Charges 93.91 75.85 
Travel ling and Conveyance 125.03 84.09 
Insurance 11.16 6.92 
Payments to Audito r 2.77 2.26 
Membership and subscription 5.96 3.19 
Directors' Sitting Fee 4.36 3.48 
Credit Bureau expenses 4.81 3.16 
CSR Expenses 10.62 5.00 

Loss on account of theft 0.08 0.20 
Other expenses 2.69 8.82 
Total 405.60 308.01 

Break up of payment to auditors (Rs. in millions) 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

As auditor : 

Statutory audit 1.47 1.35 
Tax audit 0.22 0.20 
Li mited review 0.66 0.60 

Cert ificati on fees 0.42 0.11 

2.77 2.26 

Details of CSR expenditure : 

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2020 

a) Gross amount required to be spent by Company during the year 10.61 

b) Amount spent during the period 
i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset - In cash -

Yet to paid in ca sh -
Tot al -

ii) On purpose other than (i) above - In cash 10.62 

Yet to paid in cash -
Total 10.62 

(Rs. in millions) 

For the year ended March 31, 2019 

5.00 

-
-

5.00 

-
5.00 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Belstar Invest ment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

35: Income Tax 

The components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2020 and year ended March 31, 2019 are: 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2020 
Current tax 291.45 
Deferred tax re lating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 51.01 

Income tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss 342.46 

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the period: 

Tax liability due to Fair value impact on debt instruments measured at FVOCI (0.06) 

Tax asset on remeasurements of defined benefit plans (0.32} 

Income tax charged to OCI (0.38} 

Reconciliation of the total tax charge: 

(Rs. in millions) 

Year ended 

March 31, 2019 
322.07 

(19.62) 

302.45 

5.13 

(1.47} 

3.66 

The tax charge shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tax charge that would apply if al l profits had been charged 

at India corporate tax rate. A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax 

ra te for the year ended March 31, 2020 and year ended March 31, 2019 is, as fo llows: 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Tax rate as per IT Act, 1961 25.17% 29.12% 

Accounting profit before tax 1,332.45 1,030.98 

At India's statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (2019: 29 .12%} 335.35 300.22 

Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 16.42 36.84 

Deductions (18.93} (15.79) 

Effect of income that is exempt from taxation - (18.82} 

Deferred tax adjustment due to change in rate of tax 21.44 -
Others (11.82} -
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 342.46 302.45 

The effective income tax rate for March 31, 2020 is 25.70% (March 31, 2019: 29.33%). 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
{Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

36: Deferred tax 

The following ta ble shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expense : 

Deferred tax working for the year ended March 31, 2020 

Particulars Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Income 
Assets Liabilities Statement 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2020 2019-20 

Depreciat ion 17.63 (5.17) 

Impact of expenditure charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the 20.03 (10.74) 

current yea r but claimed as expense for tax purpose on payment basis. 

Impairment allowance for financial assets 84.04 (6.92) 

Debt financial asset measured at amortised cost 47.15 (1 .84) 

Financial liabi lity measured at amortised cost (Borrowings) - (19.81) 10.19 

Impact due to gain/ loss on fair value of securitisation - (101. 65) 67.14 

Impact due to gain/ loss on fai r value of FVOCI loans (8. 65) -
Impact due to actuarial gain/ loss on gratuity 3.23 -
Others 4.55 - (1. 64) 

Total 176.63 {130.11) 51.01 

Deferred tax for the year ended March 31, 2019 

Particulars Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Income 

Assets Liabilities Statement 

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019 2018-19 

Depreciat ion 12.46 (3.80) 

Impact of expenditure charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the 9.28 (3.28) 

current year but claimed as expense for tax purpose on payment basis. 

Impairment allowance fo r financia l assets 77.11 (32.50) 

Debt fi nancial asset measured at amortised cost (loans to customer) 45.31 (11 .58) 

Financial liability measured at amortised cost (Borrowings) - (9.61) (2.97) 

Impact due to gain/ loss on fa ir value of securitisation - (34.51) 34.51 

Impact due to gain/ loss on fai r va lue of FVOCI loans - (8.72) -
Impact due to actuaria l gain/ loss on gratuity 2.91 -
Total 147.07 (52.84) (19.62) 

{Rs in millions) 

OCI 

2019-20 

-
-

-

-
(0.06) 

(0.32 ) 

(0.38) 

(Rs. in millions) 

OCI 

2018-19 

-
-

-
-

5.13 

(1.47) 

3.66 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
{Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

37: Earnings per share 

Particulars 

Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per 

share 

Effect of dilution: 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares adjusted for effect of 

dilution 

Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share (Rs.) 

Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) 

{Rs. in millions) 

Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
989.99 728.53 

37.52 31.19 

- -

37.52 31.19 

26.39 23.35 

26.39 23.35 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

38: Retirement Benefit Plan 

Defined Contribution Plan 

The company makes contributions to provident fund which are defined contribution plan for qualifying employees. During the year, the 
Company recognised Rs. 56.09 mi ll ions (Previous Year Rs. 32.72 millions) for provident fund contributions in the statement of profit and loss. 

Defined Benefit Plan 

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan . The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Every emp loyee who 

has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn sa lary) for each completed year of 
service. 

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status 
and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan. 

Statement of Profit and Loss 

Net employee benefit expense recognised in the employee cost (Rs. in millions) 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
Current service cost 10.83 5.10 
Interest cost on benefit obligation 0.38 0.03 
Past Service Cost - -
Actual return on plan assets 11.21 5.13 

Balance Sheet 

Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value of plan assets: 

(Rs. in millions) 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
Defined benefit obligation 40.38 28.33 

Fair value of plan assets 32.87 22.87 

Asset/(liability) recognized in the balance sheet (7.50) (5.46) 

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (Gain}/ Loss - -

Experience adjustments on plan assets Gain I (Loss} - -

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: (Rs. in millions} 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
Opening defined benefit obligation 28.33 17.74 
Interest cost 1.99 1.28 
Current service cost 10.83 5.10 
Benefits paid (2.39) (0.44) 

Past Service Cost - -

Actuarial loss/ (gain) on obligation 1.62 4.65 

Closing defined benefit obligation 40.38 28.33 

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows : (Rs. in millions) 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Opening fair value of plan assets 22.87 12.18 

Expected return 1.60 1.25 

Contributions by employer 10.46 10.29 

Benefits paid (2.39} (0.44) 

Actuarial gains I (losses) 0.33 (0.41) 

Closing fair value of plan assets 32.87 22.87 

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company's plans are shown below: 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Discount rate 6.41% 7.01% 

Rate of increase in compensation levels 10% 10% 

Attrition rate 20% 20% 

Expected rate of return on assets 7.01% 7.01% 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

The plan assets of the Company relating to Gratuity are managed through a trust are invested through Life Insurance Corporation (UC) and 

Exide life insurance (Exide). The details of investments relating to these assets are not shown by UC and Exide. Hence, the composition of each 

major category of plan assets, the percentage or amount that each major category constitutes to the fair value of the total plan assets has not 
been disclosed. 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
Funded with UC 67.00% 100.00% 
Funded with Exide 33.00% 0.00% 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2020 
Assumptions Discount rate impact Future salary impact 

Sensitivity Level 0.5% increase I 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase I 0.5% decrease 

Impact on defined benefit obligation (9.62)1 10.11 19.571 (18.14) 

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019 

Assumptions Discount rate impact Future salary impact 
Sensitivity Level 0.5% increase I 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase I 0.5% decrease 
Impact on defined benefit obligation (27.64)1 29.05 29.071 (27.62) 

(Rs. in millions) 

Expected benefit payment for future years March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 4.84 3.70 

Between 2 and 5 years 20.37 15.92 

Between 5 and 10 years 33.39 12.59 
Total expected payments 58.60 32.20 

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at March 31, 2020 is 6 years (2019: 5.8 years) 

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial va luation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant 
factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market. 

The di scount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated 
term of the obligations. 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

39: Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities 

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled . 

Loans and advances to customers, the Company uses the same basis of expected repayment behaviour as used for estimating the EIR. 

Issued debt reflect the contractual coupon amortisations. 

(Rs. in millions) 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total 

months months months months 

Assets 

Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 1,719.28 - 1,719.28 2,188.23 - 2,188.23 

Bank Balance other than above 769.04 654.75 1,423. 79 608.32 486.55 1,094.87 

Trade receivables 1.60 - 1.60 8.47 - 8.47 

Loans 12,654.97 8,233.72 20,888.68 11,901.10 4,486.55 16,387.65 

Investments - - - - - -
Other financial assets 812.46 59.59 872.05 558.43 - 558.43 

- -

Non-financial Assets - -

Current tax asset (net) 5.88 - 5.88 13.98 - 13.98 

Deferred tax assets (net) - 46.52 46.52 - 94.24 94.24 

Investment property - 1.10 1.10 - 1.10 1.10 

Property, plant and equipment - 53.73 53.73 - 41.01 41.01 

Right of use assets - 91.89 91.89 
Other intangib le assets - 13.09 13.09 - 11.14 11.14 

Other non fi nancial assets 56.81 13.46 70.27 39.60 - 39.60 

Tota I assets 16,020.04 9,167.85 25,187.88 15,318.12 5,120.60 20,438.72 

Liabilities 

Financial Liabilities 

Debt Securiti es 312.99 56.92 369.90 2,046.81 233.07 2,279.88 

Borrowings (other than debt security) 10,694.48 6,847.20 17,541.68 9,328.54 3,314.71 12,643.25 
Subordinated Liabilities 99.66 944.43 1,044.09 500.00 405.31 905.31 
Other Financial liabilities 975.52 - 975.52 491.66 - 491.66 

Non-financial Liabilities 

Provisions 58.07 - 58.07 46.91 - 46.91 
Other non-fi nancial liabilities 164.85 55.49 220.34 69.94 - 69.94 
Total Liabilities 12,305.56 7,904.04 20,209.60 12,483.86 3,953.10 16,436.96 

Net 4,978.28 4,001.76 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
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40: Change in liabilities arising from financing activities 
Particulars As at March 31, Cash Flows 

2019 
Debt Securities 2,279.88 (1,911.91) 
Borrowings other than debt securities 12,643.25 4,930.05 
Subordinated Liabilities 905.31 140.00 -
Total liabilities from financing activities 15,828.45 3,158.15 

--
As at March 31, T Particulars Cash Flows 

2018 

Debt Secu rities 2,159.56 123.78 

Borrowings other· than debt securities 9,301.77 3,358.57 

Subordinated Liabilitie5 713.04 206.96 
-

Total liabilitie~ financing activities 12,174.37 3,689.31 

* Other includes EIR adjustments . 

41: Contingent liabilities, commitments and leasing arrangements 

(A} Contingent liabilities 

(Rs. in millions) 

-

-
Particulars 

-
omE: tax demand where In cespect of inc 

the Company ha 

lauthorit.ie_s __ 

As at March 31, As at March 31~ 
2020 2019 

73.15 -
s filed appeal before tax 

I 
73.15 --~al . . 

(Rs. in millions) 

Other* As at March 31, 
2020 

1.93 369.90 

(31.63) 17,541.68 

(1 .22) l,044.09 --
(30.92) 18,955.67 

(Rs. in millions) 

Other* As at March 31, 

2019 

(3.45) 2,279 .88 

(17.09) 12,643.25 

(14.69) 905.31 

(35.23) 15,828.44 

Ft..:ture cashflows in respect of above is determinable only on receipt of judgement I decisions pending with tax 

authorities . The company is of the opinion that above demand is not sustainuble and expect to succeed in its appeal. 

The management believes that the ultimate outcome of the proceeding will not have a material adverse effect on the 

Company's financial position and results of operations. 

Disputed income tax demand is on account of cash deposited during demonitisation period whicn has been added by 

the department to income from other source for the asstssment year 2017-18 

(B) Commitments 

The Company has no exposure to the real estate sector and capital market directly or indirectly in the currerit and 

previous vea•·. 



(C) Lease Disclosures 

Operating Lease : 
The Company has cancellable operating lease agreements for office spaces. Terms of such lease gives right of 

cancellation to both the parties. Operating lease rental expenses for short term leases amounts to Rs. 19.76 millions 

(March 31, 2019 Rs. 31.63 millions) have been debited to statement of Profit and Loss. 

Adoption of Indian Accounting standard - 116 "Leases" 

Except as specified below, the company has consistently applied the accounting policies to all periods presented in 

this financial statement. The company has applied Ind AS 116 with the date of initial application of April 1, 2019. As a 

result, the company has changed its accounting policy for lease contracts as detailed below. 

The company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach from April 1, 2019. 

(Rs. in millions) 

Particulars Amount 

Lease commitments as at 31 March 2019 -
Add/(less) : contracts reassessed as lease contracts 38.67 

Add/(less) : adjustments on account of extension/termination -

Lease liabilities as on 1 April 2019 38.67 

Current lease liability 17.07 

Non current lease liabilities 21.60 

Right of use assets of Rs. 38.67 millions and lease liabilities of Rs. 38.67 millions have been recognised as on April 1, 

2019. 

The impact of change in accounting policy on account on adoption of Ind AS 116 is as follows 

(Rs. in millions) 
Particulars Amount 

Increase in lease liability by 121.12 

Increase in right of use assets by 121.12 

Increase in deferred tax assets by 1.62 

Increase in finance cost by 10.02 
Increase in depreciation by 32.20 

Carrying value of right of use assets at the end of the reporting period by class. 

(Rs. in millions) 

Particulars Amount 

Balance at April 1, 2019 38.67 

Addition during the year 85.42 

Less : Depreciation charge for the year (32.20) 

Balance at March 31, 2020 91.89 



Amounts recognised in profit or loss (Rs. in millions) 

Particulars Amount 

Interest on lease liabilities 10.02 

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of -
lease liab ilities 

Income from sub-leasing right-of-use assets -
Expenses relating to short-term leases 19.76 

Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets, excluding -

short-term leases of low value assets 

Total 29 .78 

Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows (Rs. in millions) 

Particulars Amount 

Interest pa id on Lease liabilities 10.02 

Payment towards Lease liabilities 25.07 

Total cash outflow for leases 35.09 

Maturity analysis of lease liabilities (Rs. in millions) 

Particulars Amount 

Less t han one year 40.56 

One to five years 55.49 

More than five years -

Total cash outflow for leases 96.05 



Related Party transaction) dt:dng the year: (Rs. in millions) 

f Assodates / Enterprises owned or 

. 1· significantly influenced by Key 
Fellow Subsidiary I Key Managerial Persons Hold mg Company ! Managemrnt PerJonnel or their 

I · re!atives 

As at ---r-~~l As at I As at 
I ~arch"31.-;-"20201-Marr~""31.;20ITJ-Marcff"31, .W20 I March 31, 2019 

Particuior!i 

Asat I As at 
March 31, 2020 I March 31, 2019 

As at I As at I As at r- A.s •t As •t As at 
March 31, 2()20 March 31, 20191 March 31, 2CW I March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Ent:tics holding substantial 

interest 

Relative of Key Managerial 
Persons 

Towards loan repayr!'lent collections, 

reimb uri;ement of expensP,:; and loan recoveries 

for employees transferrt'd 

0.~ 3 

! 
0.05 

lnour2oce premium wllection pa:d I I I 50.47 , I I 
Tcwa~ds purchose ofSHG loan Portfo!io I 50.39 I 367.22 
------
Term loan rl:!paici 

Subordinated Debt< 
Issue of equity shares (including share premiu111) 

Services rer.dere~ 

: Services received 

i Dividend ;>aid on Equity Share~ 
Interest on NCO paid 

Finar.ce cost on Account of term loan availed 

Arranger fee 

Consultancy services avai led for training 

I Corporate Socia! Responsibility 

S1tti11gfee 

Balance outstanding as ot the year end: 

Payal>les 

~ec~ivables 

Subordinat.ad iJebts 

13.13 

Compensation of key management personnel of the Company: 

79.67 

1,368.20 

~.46 

26.53 1.32 

3.29 
23.40 

3.09 

1.20 

8.19 1.35 
10.46 5.00 

1.42 

0.96 
170.00 

649.99 

0.46 

I 2.29 

23.43 

0.49 

170.00 

Key management personnel are those individuals w ho have the authority and responsi bility fo r planning and exercising power to directly or indirectly control the activities of the Company and its 

:m1p[oyees. The Company considers all Directors, Chief Financic.i Officer and Compc::ny Secretary a$ key management personnel for the purposes of IND AS 24 Related Party Disclosures. 

IRs. in mill ;onsl 

Panicular:t March U , 2020 March 31, 2019 

Shvrt·-term emp!:lyee bene:fits 23.69 lE.73 

C<Jr.tribution to PF (defined contriLutton) 0.09 0.06 

rot~! 23.78 16.79 

The remur1eration to the key ma11a&eria; p.:;sonnel does not inclucle the provisions made f.Jr gratuity, as they are determined on il n octuarial basi!:i fer the compa ny as a w hole. 

240.00 

0.05 

8.65 

4.36 3.48 

240.00 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

42: Related Party Disclosures 

Relationship 

Key Management Personnel 

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by 

key management personnel or their relatives 

Holding Company 

Fellow Subsidiary 

Entities holding substantial interest 

Relatives of Key Management Personnel 

Dr. (Mrs. ) Kalpanaa Sankar (Managing Director) 

Mr. Sitaraman Chandrasekar (Executive Director) 

Mr. George Alexander (Investor Director) 

Mr. George Muthoot Jacob (Investor Director) 

Mr. Kuttickattu Rajappan Bijimon (investor Director) 

Mr. David Arturo Paradiso (Investor Director) 

Mr. Subramanian Ananthanarayanan (Independent Director) 

Mr. Vadakkakara Antony George (Independent Director) 

Mr. Venkataraman Krishnamoorthy (independent Director) 

Mr. Chinnasamy Ganesan (Independent Director) 

Mr. L. Muralidharan (Chief Financial Officer) 

Mr. Sunil Kumar Sahu (Company Secretary) 

1. Hand in Hand Consulting Services Pvt Ltd 

2. Hand in Hand Inclusive Development & Services 

3. Hand in Hand India 

4. Socio Economic and Educational Development Trust 

5. Muthoot securities limited 

6. Sahasankha Advisory and Consulting Services Private Limited 

Muthoot Finance Limited 

1. Asia Asset Finance PLC, Sri Lanka 

2. Muthoot Homefin (India) Limited. 

3. Muthoot Insurance Brokers Private Limited 

4. Muthoot Money Limited ( Formerly known as Muthoot Money India Private Limited) 

5. Muthoot Asset Management Private Limited 

6. Muthoot Trustee Private Limited 

l. Sarvam Financial Inclusion Trust (previously known as Sarvam Mutual Benefit Trust, Kancheepuram) 

2. Maj Invest Financial Inclusion Fund II K/S 

l. George Alexander Muthoot 

2. George Jacob Muthoot 

3. George Thomas Muthoot 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

43: Capital 

Capital Management 

The primary objective of the Company's capital management policy is to ensure that the Company complies with 

externally imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support 

its business and to maximise shareholder value. 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and 

requirements of the financial covenants . In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the 

amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. RBI has issued 

guidance on implementation of Indian Accounting Standards vi de RBl/2019-20/170 DOR 

(NBFC) .CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020. The Regulatory capital as at March 31, 2020 has been 

computed as per above mentioned RBI notification. 

(Rs. in millions) 

Regulatory capital March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Common Equity Tierl capital 4,373 .55 3,880.13 

Other Tier 2 capital instruments 848.67 518.64 

Total capital 5,222.23 4,398.76 

Risk weighted assets 20,342 16,997 

CETl capital ratio 21.50% 22.83% 

Total capital ratio 25 .67% 25.88% 

44: Events after reporting date 
There are no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements. 



BEi.STAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 

(Fn:mer!.y known as Beist2r Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

·Notes to financial statement~ fo r the period P.!1ded March 31, 2020 

45: Fair Value Measurement 
r: ai;· value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderlv transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the 

rnEasuremen l date under cur rent market conditions (i .e., .an exit price), regardless of whether th3t price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique. In order to 

show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques. 

!. The fullowing table shows an analysis if fir1ancial instruments recorded at fair value (Rs. in millions) 

IVlarch 31, 2020 Levell Level 2 Level3 

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis 

EJnancial assets at Fi/Oct 

LOans - - 1,429.36 -- (Rs. in millions) 

March 31, 201S Levell Level2 Level 3 

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis 

Financial assets at FVOC/ 

Loans - - 1,239.27 

Fair vaiue technique 

Loans at FVOC/ 

For loans at I-VOCI, valuation is done using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual cash flows using actual or estimated yields. 

ii. The following tables show the reconciliation of the openinq and closing amounts of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value: 
(Rs. in millions) 

March 31, 2020 I As at April 01, l;;suancesand Settlements (Net) Transfers 
I 

Transfers from Net interest Other As at March 31, 

I 2019 into Level 3 Level3 income Comprehensive 2020 

Income ·-
Financial assets at FVOC/ 

Loar,s 1,239.27 42.82 147.51 (0.25) 1,429.36 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

March 31, 2019 As at April 01, issuancesand Settlements (Net) I Transfers i Transfers from ' Net interest Other 

2018 
1 

into Level 3 Level 3 income Comprehensive 

Income 
-

I 
Financial assets at FVOCI 

Loans 520.12 594.27 107.24 17.63 

Iii. Impact on fair value of level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value of changes to key assumptions 

The table summarises the valuation techniques together with the significant unobservable inputs used to calculate the fair value of loans classified at level 3. 

(Rs. in millions) 

Particulars Level 3 Assets Valuation Technique Significant Unobservable 

March 31, 2020 Input 

Loans 1,429.36 Discounted Projected cash flow Discount/Margin Spread 

(Rs. in millions) 

Particulars Level 3 Assets Valuation Technique Significant Unobservable 

31 March 2019 Input 

Loans 1,239.27 Discounted Projected cash flow Discount/Margin Spread 

(Rs. in millions) 

As at March 31, 

2019 

1,239.27 

The Company has taken one discount rate to discount the loans. The discount rate taken in March 2020 is 21.05% and in March 2019 is 23.55%. Thus a significant increase in spread 

above the cost of borrowing would result in lower fair value. 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

iV. Sensitivity of fair value measurements to changes in unobservable market data 
t\.lthough the Compan'{ believes that its estimates of J;;ii~ value are appropric.te, the use of different methodologies or assumptions could lead to different measurements of fair 

value. For fair value measurements in Leve! 3, changing one-or more of the assumptions used to reasonably possible alternative assumptions would have the following effects. 

(Rs. in millions) 

I 
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 ,____ 

Effect in Other Comprehensive Effect in Other 

Income Comprehensive Income 

Favourable I Unfavourable Favourable I Unfavourable 

I Leans 6.09i 6.09 4.571 4.55 

Fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value 

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's financial instruments that are not carried at fair value in the financial statements. 

This table does not include the fair values of non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities. 

(Rs. in millions) 

Pa;ticulars Note Level Carrying Value Fair Value 

Mar-20 Mar-19 Mar-20 Mar-19 

Financial assets not measured at fair 

value 

Cash and cash equivalents 6 1 1,719.28 2,188.23 1,719.28 2,188.23 

Bank Balance other than above 7 1 1423.79 1,094.87 1,423.79 1,094.87 

Trade receivables 

I 
8 3 1.60 8.46 1.60 8.46 

Lodns 9 3 19,469.76 15,187.37 19,469.76 15,187.37 

Cther 1-inancial assets I 11 _I 3 872.05 558.43 872.05 558.43 

Total financial assets 23,486.48 19,037.35 23,486.48 19,037.35 
I 

Financial Liabilities not measured at 

fair value 

Debt Securities 16 2 369 .90 2,279.88 369.90 2,279.88 

Borrowings (other than debt securities) 17 2 17,541.68 12,54-3.25 17,541.68 12,643.25 

Subordinated Liabilities 18 2 1,044.09 905.31 1,044.09 905.31 

Other Financial liabilities 19 3 975 .52 491.66 975.52 491.66 

Financial Liabilities 19,931.19 ' 16,320.10 19,931.19 16,320.10 
- - - . . . .. -. 

( 
~ 

~ 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE UMITED 
(Form~rly known as Belstar Investment and Flncmce Private Limited) 

\/. l!aluation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value 
Below 2re the methodologies and assumptions u:;ed to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and measured at fair value in the financial 

st?.tements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. rhe below methodologies and assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables. 

Financial assets at amortised cost 
The fair value of loans given to customers ar"e estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual cash flows using actual or estimated yields. 

Financial /i;;ibility at amortised cost 
The fai r value of borrowings, debt securities and subordinate liabilities are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual cash flows using actual or estimated 

yieids. 

Short term financial assets and laibilities 
The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, trade receivables, other financial assets and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amount largely due to 

the short-term nature of these instruments. The Company's loans have been contracted at market rates of interest. Accordingly, the carrying value of these approximates fair value. 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

46: Risk Management 
Risk is an integral part of the Company's business and sound risk management is critical to the success. As a financial intermediary, the Company is exposed to risks that 

are particular to its lending and the environment within which it operates and primarily includes credit, liquidity and market risks. The Board of Directors of the Company 

are responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk management strategies and principles. The Company has a risk management policy 

which covers all the risk associated with its assets and liabilities. 

The Company has implemented comprehensive policies and procedures to assess, monitor and manage risk throughout the Company. The risk management process is 

continuously reviewed, improved and adapted in the changing risk scenario and the agility of the risk management process is monitored and reviewed for its 

appropriateness in the changing risk landscape. The process of continuous evaluation of risks includes taking stock of the risk landscape on an event-driven basis. 

The Company has an elaborate process for risk management. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically adressed through mitigating 

actions on a continuing basis. The Company's treasury is responsible for managing its assets and liabilities and the overall financial structure. It is also primarily 

responsible for the funding and liquidity risks of the Company. 

I. Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company's main income 

generating activity is lending to customers and therefore credit risk is a principal risk. Credit risk mainly arises from loans and advances and trade receivables. For a micro 

finance institution like Belstar, this assumes more significance since the lending that is carried out is not backed by any collaterals. 

The credit risk management policy of the Compaany seeks to have following controls and key metrics that allows credit risks to be identified, assessed, monitored and 

reported in a timely and efficient manner in compliance with regulatory requirements. 

- Standardize the process of identifying new risks and designing appropriate controls for these risks 

- Minimize losses due to defaults or untimely payments by borrowers 

- Maintain an appropriate credit administration and loan review system 

- Establish metrics for portfolio monitoring 

- Design appropriate credit risk mitigation techniques 



Risk Identification 
Credit risk may originate in one or multiple of following ways mentioned below: 

- Adverse selection of members for group formation eg. (bogus members, defaulters, etc.) 

- Adverse selection of groups for undertaking lending activity (unknown members due to geographical vicin ity, etc.) 

- Gap in credit assessment of borrower's credit worthiness (Failure to collect KYC documents, verify residential address, assess income source, etc.) 

- Undue Influence of Anim ator/Representative on group members (misuses of savings of group, etc.) 

- Sanction of higher loan amount 

- Improper use of loan amount than the designated activity 

- Over-concentration in any geography/branch/zone etc 

- Change in the savings pattern/meeting pattern of group post availing loan (eg. failure of members to deposit minimum savings amount each month, absence of 

members from meetings, etc.) 

Risk assessment and measurement 
Belstar is having a robust risk assessment framework to address each of the identified risks. The following is the framework implemented in order to ensure 

completeness and robustness of the risk assessment. 

- Selection of client base for group formation - Adequate due diligence is carried out for selection of women borrowers who are then brought together for SHG 

formation. (eg. members with same level of income, only one member from family, annual per capita income, etc.) 

- Adequate Training and Knowledge of SHG operations 

- Credit assessment - credit rating and credit bureau check 

- Follow up and regular monitoring of the group 

Risk Monitoring 

Monitoring and follow up is an essential element in the overall risk management framework and is taken up very seriously at all levels within the organization. 

Monitoring and controlling risks is primarily performed based on limits established by the Company. 

Borrower Risk Ratings is an effective tool to flag potential problems in the loan accounts and identify if any corrective action plan are to be taken. However, the loans 

originated by Belstar are mostly short tenure loans (maximum loan tenure being 30 months) and the volume of such loan origination per credit officer is also high, 

thereby making it practically difficult to carry out a re-rating of borrowers at regular intervals. Therefore, loans are tracked at a homogeneous pool basis by the Risk 

Team. Any deterioration in the performance of the pool are immediately pointed out to the Senior Management and detailed analysis are carried out to identify the 

trends in performance. 



The risk monitoring metri cs have been defined to track performance at each stage of the loan life cycle: 

- Credit Origination - KYC pendency, if any; deviation index from the defined policies and procedures 

- Credit sanction - Disbursement to High Risk rated groups/borrowers; Early Delinquency due to fraud 

- Credit monitoring -

- Portfolio at risk - The metrics provides an indication of potential losses that may arise from overdue accounts. {loans staging more than 90 Days past due); 

- Static pool analysis - Provides an indication about the portfolio performance vis-a-vis the vintage of the loans and helps compare performance of loans 

generated in different time periods 

- Collection and Recovery - collection efficiency, Roll forward rates and roll backward rates. 

Risk Mitigation 

Risk Mitigation or risk reduction is defined as the process of reducing risk exposures and/or minimizing the likelihood of incident occurrence. 

The following risk mitigation measures has been suggested at each stage of loan life cycle: 

- Loan Origination - site screening, independent vist by manager, adequate training to officers. 

- Loan underwriting - Risk rating, independent assessment, etc. 

- Loan Pre and Post Disbursement - disbursement at the branch premises and in the bank account only, tracking to avoid misuse of funds, 

- Loan monitoring - credit officers to attend group meeting, reminder of payment of emis on time, etc. 

- Loan collection and recovery - monitor repayments, confirmation of balances, 

It is the Company's policy to ensure that a robust risk awareness is embedded in its organisational risk culture. Employees are expected to take ownership and be 

accountable for the risks the Company is exposed to that they decide to take on. Continuous training and development emphasises that employees are made aware of 

the Company's risk appetite and they are supported in their roles and responsibilities to monitor and keep their exposure to risk within the Company's risk appetite 

limits. Compliance breaches and internal audit findings are important elements of employees' annual ratings and remuneration reviews. 



Impairment assessment 

The Company is basica lly engaged in the business of providing loans and access to Credit to the Self Help Group (SHG} members/ Joint Liability Group (JLG} members. 

The ten ure of which is ranging from 12 months to 24 months. Moreover, Company has categorised its loan into two broad categories Micro Enterprise loans (MEL} and 

others. 

The Company's impairment assessment and measurement approach is set out in this note. It should be read in conjunction with the Summary of significant accounting 

poiicies 3.6 

Definition of default and cure 

The Company considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired} for ECL calculations in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days 

past due on its contractual payments. 

As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default, the Company also considers a variety of instances that may indicate unlikeness to pay. When 

such events occur, the Company carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL 

calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate. 

It is the Company's policy to consider a financial instrument as 'cured' and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3 when the due amount have been paid. The decision 

whether to classify an asset as Stage 2 or Stage 1 once cured depends on the updated credit grade, at the time of the cure, and whether this indicates there has been a 

significant increase in credit risk compared to initial recognition. 

Company's internal credit rating grades and staging criteria for loans are as follows: 

Rating Loans Days Stages 

past due (DPD) 

High grade Not yet due Stage I 

Standard grade 1-30 DPD Stage I 

Sub-standard grade 30-60 DPD Stage II 

Past due but not 60-89 DPD Stage II 

impaired 

Individually impaired 90 DPD or Stage Ill 

More 



Exposure at Default {EAD) 

The outstanding ba lance as at the reporti ng date is considered as EAD by the company. 

Probability of default (PD) 

The Probability of Default is an est imate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. To calculate the ECL for a Stage 1 loan, the Company assesses the possible 

default events within 12 months fo r the calcu lation of the 12mECL. For Stage 2 and Stage 3 financial assets, the exposure at default is considered for events over the 

lifetime of the instruments. The Company uses historical information where available to determine PD. Considering the different products and schemes, the Company 

has bifurcated its loan portfol io into various pools. PD is calculated using Incremental NPA approach considering fresh slippage using historical information. 

Based on its review of macro-economic developments and economic outlook, the Company has analysed various scenarios and applied management estimates on the 

proposed collection trend fo r the demand and created an additional COVID 19 provision based on approval from the board . 

Loss Given Default 

The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash 

flows due and those that the lender wou ld expect to receive. 

LGD Rates have been computed internally based on the discounted recoveries in NPA accounts that are closed/ written off/ repossessed and upgraded during the year. 

When estimating ECLs on a collective basis for a group of similar assets, the Company applies the same principles for assessing whether there has been a significant 

increase in credit risk since initial recognition. 

Significant Increase in credit risk 

The internal rating model evaluates the loans on an ongoing basis. The rating model also assesses if there has been a significant increase in credit risk since the previously 

assigned risk grade One key factor that indicates significant increase in credit risk is when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due. 

Company's financial assets measured on a collective basis 

For Stage 3 assets ECL is ca lculated on an individual basis. 

For stages 1 and 2 the internal rating model analysis past trend s, income level and other combinations.The loss estimation for these pools is hence done on a co llective 

basis. 



II. Asset Liability Management 

Asset and Liability Management (ALM) is defined as the practice of managing risks arising due to mismatches in the asset and liabilities. Belstar's funding consists of both 

long term as well as short term sources with different maturity patterns and varying interest rates . On the other hand, the asset book also comprises of loans of different 

duration and interest rates. Maturity mismatches are therefore common and has an impact on the liquidity and profitability of the company. It is necessary for Belstar to 

monitor and manage the assets and liabilities in such a manner to minimize mismatches and keep them within reasonable limits. 

The objective of this policy is to create an institutional mechanism to compute and monitor periodically the maturity pattern of the various liabilities and assets of Belstar 

to (a) ascertain in percentage terms the nature and extent of mismatch in different maturity buckets, especially the 1-30/31days bucket, which would indicate the 

structural liquidity (b) the extent and nature of cumulative mismatch in different buckets indicative of short term dynamic liquidity and (c) the residual maturity pattern 

of repricing of assets and liabilities which would show the likely impact of movement of interest rate in either direction on profitability. This pol icy will guide the ALM 

system in Belstar. 

The scope of ALM function can be described as follows: 

- Liquidity risk management 

- Management of market risks 

- Others 

46.1. Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity is measured by our ability to accommodate decreases in purchased liabilities, and fund increases in assets. In assessing the company's liquidity position, 

consideration shall be given to : (1) present and anticipated asset quality (2) present and future earnings capacity (3) historical funding requirements (4) current liquidity 

position (5) anticipated future funding needs, and (6) sources of funds. 

The Company maintains a portfolio of marketable assets that are assumed to be easily liquidated in the event of an unforeseen interruption in cash flow. The Company 

also enters into securitization deals (direct assignment as well as pass through certificates) of their loan portfolio, the funding from which can be accessed to meet 

liquidity needs. In accordance with the Company's policy, the liquidity position is assessed under a variety of scenarios, giving due consideration to stress factors relating 

to both the market in general and specifically to the Company. Net liquid assets consist of cash, short-term bank deposits and investments in mutual fund available for 

immediate sale, less issued securities and borrowings due to mature within the next month. 

liquidity ratios 
Advances to borrowings ratios 

Particulars 2020 2019 

Year-end 110.67% 107.62% 

Maximum 116.50% 122.82% 

Minimum 98.64% 100.55% 

Average 109.12% 109.94% 



Borrowings from banks and financial institutions and issue of debentures are considered as important sources of funds to finance lending to customers. They are 

monitored using the advances to borrowings ratio, which compares loans and advances to customers as a percentage of secured and unsecured borrowings 

The table below provide details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial assets and liabi lities as on:­

Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on March 31, 2020: 

Particulars Upto 1 month lto 2 2 to3 3 to 6 6 months to 1to3 years 3 to 5 years 

months months months 1 year 

Borrowings (other 840.08 706.35 1,260.41 2,905.70 4,981.94 6,819.43 27.77 

than debt securities) 

Debt securities 78.15 50.00 · 50.00 78.21 56.62 56.92 -

Subordinated debts - - - 99.66 - 304.86 

Total 918.23 756.35 1,310.41 2,983.91 5,138.23 6,876.34 332.63 

Cash and bank 1,719.28 - - - - -
balance 

Deposits 83.00 100.02 27.00 282.43 276.60 598.51 56.24 

Receivables 1.60 - - - - - -

Loans 245 .34 237.48 1,318.95 4,359.84 6,493.36 8,233.71 -

Total 2,049.23 337.50 1,345.95 4,642.27 6,769.96 8,832.22 56.24 

(Rs. in millions) 

Over 5 years Total 

17,541.68 

- 369.90 

639.57 1,044.09 

639.57 18,955.68 

- 1,719.28 

- 1,423.79 

- 1.60 

- 20,888.68 

- 24,033.36 



Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on March 31, 2019: 

(Rs. in millions) 

Particulars Upto 1 month lto 2 2 to 3 3 to 6 6 months to 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 years Over 5 years Total 

months months months 1 year 

Borrowings (other 706.17 812.53 991.39 2,577.26 4,316.31 2,677.77 561.81 - 12,643.25 

than debt securities) 

Debt securities 50.00 50.00 387.50 554.17 1,023.52 200.00 14.70 - 2,279.88 

Subordinated debts - 310.00 - - 190.00 100.00 305.31 905.31 

Total 756.17 1,172.53 1,378.89 3,131.43 5,529.83 2,977.77 881.82 - 15,828.45 

Cash and bank 1,888.23 - 300.00 - - - - - 2,188.23 

balance 

Deposits 7.54 121.25 147.79 50.68 281.07 - 486.55 - 1,094.87 

Receivables 8.47 - - - - - - - 8.47 

Loans 1,143.99 1,121.88 1,097.39 3,169.41 5,171.86 4,683.11 - - 16,387.65 

Total 3,048.23 1,243.13 1,545.18 3,220.09 5,452.94 4,683.11 486.55 - 19,679.22 

46.2. Economic Risk 

The SARS CoV-2 virus responsible for COVID -19 continues to spread across the globe and India, which has contributed to a significant decline and volatility in global and 

Indian financial markets and a significant decrease in economic activities. The impact of the same is also seen in the microfinance borrowers with whom the Company is 

dealing . On March 24, 2020, the Indian Government announced a strict 21 day lockdown which was further extended till May 17, 2020 across the Country to contain 

the spread of the virus. As a result of the same, the Company also restricted its collection activities. 

In accordance with the RBI guidelines relating to COVID-19 Regulatory Package dated March 27, 2020 and April 17, 2020, the Company has proposed a moratorium of 

three months on the payment of all instalments and/ or interest, as applicable, falling due between March 1, 2020 and May 31, 2020 to all eligible borrowers classified as 

standard, even if overdue as on February 29, 2020, excluding the collections made already made in the month of March 31, 2020. For all such accounts where the 

moratorium is granted, the asset classification will remain standstill during the moratorium period (i .e. the number of days past due shall exclude the moratorium period 

for the purposes of asset classification) 

The Company based on current information available, has analysed various scenarios and applied management estimates on the proposed collection trend for the 

demand and created an additional COVID 19 provision based on approval from the board . 



46.3. Market Risk 

M arket Risk is the risk that the fai r value or the futu re cash fl ows of a financial instrument w ill fluctuate beca use of changes in market factor. Such changes in the values 

of financial inst ruments may result from cha nges in the interest rates and other market changes. The Company is exposed to two types of market risk as follows: 

46.4. Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate ri sk is the risk that the futu re cash flows of a financia l instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 

Asset Liability Committee shall manage its rate sensitivity position to ensure the long run earning power of the company. In addressing this challenge, the ratios of rate 

sensitive assets (RSA) to rate sensitive liabilities (RSL) and gap (RSA minus RSL) to equity, as well as gap to total assets will be reviewed based on 30, 60, 90, 180, and 365-

day, 1-2 year, and greater than 2 year definitions. More importantly, however, special emphasis is to be placed on the change in net interest income that will result from 

possible fluctuations in interest rates, changing account volumes, and t ime. 

We are subject to interest rate risk, principally because we lend to cl ients at fi xed interest rates and for periods that may differ from our funding sources, while our 

borrowings are at both fixed and variable interest rates for different periods. We assess and manage our interest rate risk by managing our assets and liabilities. Our 

Asset Liability Management Committee evaluates asset liabil ity management, and ensures that all significant mismatches, if any, are being managed appropriately. 

Management of Interest Margin 

The spread or interest margin, otherwise known as "Gap", is the difference between the return on assets and the expenses paid on liabilities. Assets are classified as Rate 

Sensitive Assets and fi xed Rate Assets. Liabilities are classified as Rate Sensitive Liabilities and fixed Rate Liabilities. An asset or liability is identified as sensitive if cash 

flows from the asset or liability change in the same direction and general magnitude as the change in short-term rates. The cash flows of insensitive (or non-sensitive) 

assets or liabilities do not change within the relevant time period . 

The sensitivity of the statement of profit and loss is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the profit or loss for a year, based on the floating rate 

non- trading financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2020. 

The Company has Board Approved Asset Liability Management (ALM) policy for managing interest rate risk and policy for determining the interest rate to be charged on 

the loans given. 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the interest rates on the portion of borrowings affected. With all other variables held 

constant, the profit before tax affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows: 

(Rs. in millions) 

Effect on Effect on 
Statement of Statement of 

Particulars Profit and loss Profit and loss 
for the year for the year 
2019-20 2018-19 

0.50% increase (94.78) (79.14) 

0.50% decrease 94.78 79.14 



46.5. Price Risk 

The Company's exposure to price risk is not material and it is primarily on account of investment of temporary treasury surpluses in the highly liquid debt funds for very 

short durations. The Company has a board approved policy of investing its surplus funds in highly rated mutual funds and other instruments having insignificant price 

risk, not being equity funds/ risk bearing instruments. 

46.6. Prepayment risk 

Prepayment risk is the risk that the Company will incur a financial loss because its customers and counterparties repay or request repayment earlier or later than 

expected, such as fixed rate mortgages when interest rates fall . 

Ill. Operational and business risk 

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls fail to operate effectively, operational risks can 

cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financial loss. The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but it 

endeavours to manage these risks through a control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, 

access, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, such as the use of internal audit. 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financia l statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

47: Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 

Based on and to the extent on information received by the Company from the Suppliers during tile year regarding their 

status under the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) there are no amounts due to 

the suppliers registered under MSMED Act, 2006. 

48: Expenditure in Foreign Currency 

A. Foreign Currency Expendiure 

The total foreign travel expenditure for the year ended as on 31 March 2020 is Rs. Nil (PY Nil). 

B. Unhedged Foreign Currency 

The Company did not have any unhedged Foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2020 is Rs. Nil (PY Nil). 

49: Segment Information 

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of Micro Financing. As per the Chief Operating decision maker, all the 

activities of the Company revolve around the main business and there is no other relevant segment. Further, the Company 

does not have any separate geographical segments other than India. As such there are no separate reportable segments as 

per Ind AS -108 "Operating Segments". 

50: Additional Disclosures pursuant to Reserve Bank of India Directions 

A. Disclosure Pursuant to Reserve Bank of India D NBS.193 DG (VL) - 2007 dated 22 February 2007: 

(Rs. in millions) 

S. No Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Amount Amount Over Amount Amount Over Due 

Outstanding Due Outstanding 

Liabilities: 

1 Loans and advances availed by the NBFC inclusive of 

interest accrued thereon not paid: 

(a) Debentures & Preference shares 

-Secured 203.19 - 931.33 -

-Unsecured 1,210.80 - 2,253.87 -

(Other than falling within the meaning of Public deposits) - -

(b) Deferred Credits - - - -

(c) Term Loans 16,245.37 - 8,964.62 -

(d) Inter-Corporate Loans and Borrowings - - - -

(e) Commercial Paper - - - -

(f) Other Loans.(Nature ~'--••-- 1 oans, CC etc.) 1,296.31 - 3,678.63 -
,, -"" " 

( ) 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Lim ited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

S. No Particulars 

Assets 

2 Breakup of Loans and Advances including Bills Receivables 

[Other than those included in (3) below] : 

(a) Secured 
(b) Unsecured (incl uding Interest accrued and Loans to staff) 

3 Break up of Leased Assets and Stock on Hire and other 

Assets counting towards AFC activities. 
(i) Leased Assets including Leased Renta ls Accrued and Due: 

(a) Financial Lease 

(b) Operating Lease 
(ii) Stock on fire including Hire charges under Sundry Debtors: 

(a) Assets on Hire 

(b) Repossessed Assets 
(iii) Other Loans counting towards AFC activities 

(a) Loans where Assets have been Repossessed 

(b) Loans Other than (a) above 

4 Breakup of investments 

Current Investments 

I Quoted: 
(i) Shares : (a) Equity 

(b) Preference 
(ii) Debentures and Bonds 
(iii) Units of Mutual Fund 

(iv) Government Securities 

(v) Others (Please Specify) 

II Unquoted: 

(i) Shares : (a) Equity 

(ii) (b) Preference 
(iii) Debentures and Bonds 
(iv) Units of Mutua l Fund 
(v) Government Securities 

Others (Please Specify) 

Long Term Investments 

I Quoted : 

(i) Shares : (a) Equity 

(b) Preference 
(ii) Debentures and Bonds 

(iii) Units of Mutual Fund 

(iv) Government Securities 

(v) Others (Please Specify) 

II Unquoted : 

(i) Shares : (a) Equity 

(b) Preference 

(ii) Debentures and Bonds 

(iii) Units of Mutual Fund 

(iv) Government Securities 

(v) Others (Please Specify) _..,,,,,,,,_ 

~'t-Y'~IV ~~ 

(~I 
~ ~ 

'ffEo Acr::.,'\l'/:;.~ 
-=--

(Rs. in millions) 

As at As at 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

- -

21,257.47 16,651.64 

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -
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BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 

(Former!y known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

Borrower Group-Wise classification of Assets financed as in (2) and (3) above (Rs. in millions) 

S. No Category Net of provisions as at March 31, 2020 Net of provisions as at March 31, 2019 

Secured Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total 

1 Related Parties - - - - - -

(a) Subsidiaries - - - - - -

(b) Companies in the Same Group - - - - - -

(c) Other Related Parties - - - - - -

2 Other than Related Parties - 20,888.68 20,888.68 - 16,387.6S 16,387.6S 

Total - 20,888.68 20,888.68 - 16,387.65 16,387.65 

6 . Investor Group-Wise classification of.all Investments (Curr.ent and Long-term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted): 

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 

Category 
Market value I Book Value Market value I Book Value 

Breakup Value or (Net of Breakup Value (Net of 

Fair Value or Net Provisioning) or Fair Value or Provisioning) 

1 Related Parties - - - -

(a) Subsidiaries - - - -

(b) Companies in the Same Group - - - -
(c) Other Related Parties - - - -
2 Other than Related Parties - - - -

Total - - - -
(Rs. in millions) 

7 Other Information Amount Amount 

outstanding as outstanding as 

at March 31, at March 31, 

2020 2019 

(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets Related Parties - -

Other than 235.84 211.08 

Related Parties 

(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets Related Parties - -
Other than 19.53 23.53 

Related Parties 

(iii) Assets Acquired in Satisfaction Debt Related Parties - -

Other than - -

~ Related Parties 
~\v." "'IY _,,~ 

l 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limit ed) 

Notes to financial statements for t he period ended March 31, 2020 

B. Disclosure pursuant to RBI Notification DNBS.200/CGM (PK)-125/03.05.00/2008 dated 1 August 2008 

(Rs. in millions) 

Category As at As at 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

A) Direct Exposure 
(i) Resident ial Mortgages -

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential - -

property that is or w ill be occupied by the borrower or that 

is rented; (Individual housing loans up to Rs. 15 lakh may be 

shown separately) 

(ii) Commercial Real Estate -

Lending secured by mortgages on commercia l real - -
estates (office buildings, retai l space, multipurpose 

Commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings, 

multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or 

warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and 

construction, etc.). Exposure would also include non-f und 

based (NFB) limits; 

(iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other 

secu ritised exposures -

a. - -

b. - -

B) Indirect Exposure 

Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National - -

Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs). 

C. Disclosure pursuant to RBI guidelines on Securitisation DNBR (PD) CC. No.002/03.10.001/2014-15 dated November 10, 

2014 the details of securitisation are given below 

(Rs. in millions) 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

No. of. SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation 10 11 
transaction 

Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs 1,543.62 3,665.01 

sponsored 

Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to company with MRR as on the date of Balance 

sheet 

a) Off-Balance sheet exposures 

First loss 

Others 

b) On-Balance sheet exposures 

First Loss 379.13 313.25 

Others 688.52 610.88 

Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other 

than MRR 

a) Off-Balance sheet exposures 

i) Exposure to own securitisations 

First loss - -

Loss - -

ii) Exposure to third party securitisations 

First loss - -

Others - -

b) On-Balance sheet exposures 

i) Exposure to own stcuritisations 

First loss - -

Others - -

ii) Exposure tG third party securitisations 

First loss - -
Others ~~~N~ - -

'?:r ~~ ~~ENNAI ~)) 
~ ~ 
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BELSTAR M ICROFINANCE LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period e nded Ma rch 31, 2020 
Detai ls of Assignment Transactions undertaken:-

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

i) Tota l number of loan assets assigned duri ng the year 2,90,012 90,661 

ii) Book valu e of loan assets assigned during the year (Rs. In 7,807.89 2,148.30 

millions) 

iii) Sale consideration received during the year (Rs. In 6,769.28 1,933.47 

millions) 

vi) Income recognised in statement of profit and loss (Rs. In 266.76 118.51 

millions) 

D. Disclosure pursuant to RBI Notification RBl/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020 

Loss Allowances 
Asset Gross Carrying 

(Provisions) as 
Asset classification as per RBI norms classification as Amount as per 

Net Carrying 

required under Amount 
per IND AS 109 Ind AS 

Ind AS 109 

Performing asset 

Standard 
Stage 1 20,966.30 151.83 20,814.47 

Stage 2 55.33 0.66 54.66 

Subtotal 21,021.63 152.49 20,869.14 

Non-Performing asset (NPA) 

Substandard Stage 3 235.84 216.30 19.53 

Doubtful 

upto 1 year Stage 3 - - -

1 to 3 years Stage 3 - - -

More than 3 years Stage 3 - - -

Subtotal for doubtful - - -

Loss Stage 3 - - -

Subtotal fo r NPA 235 .84 216.30 19.53 

Other items such as guarantees, loan commitments, etc. Stage 1 - - -

which are in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered under 
Stage 2 - - -

current Income Recognition, Asset Classification and 

Provisioning (IRACP) norms Stage 3 - - -

Subtotal - - -

Stage 1 20,966.30 151.83 20,814.47 

Stage 2 55.33 0.66 54.66 
~ 

Total 

~RA~ 
Stage 3 235.84 216.30 19.53 

Total 21,257.46 368.79 20,888.67 

~·J' ' ' -:; t>Jo~lr-, ~~I) 
~cg, """ ,,...., ~), 

~ '<:::::;. ~ 

(Rs. in millions) 

Provisions 
Difference 

between Ind AS 
required as 

109 provisions 
per IRACP 

andlRACP 
norms 

norms 

89.93 61.90 

0 .38 0.28 

90.31 62.19 

110.69 105.61 

- -

- -
- -
- -

- -

110.69 105.61 

- -

- -

- -

- -

89.93 61.90 

0.38 0.28 

110.69 105.61 

201.00 167.79 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

As per guidance on implementation of Indian Accounting Standards vide RBl/2019-20/170 DOR 

(NBFC) .CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020, where impairment allowance under Ind AS 109 is lower 

than the provisioning required under IRACP (including standard asset provisioning), NBFCs/ARCs shall appropriate the 

difference from their net profit or loss after tax to a separate 'Impairment Reserve' . Since the impairment allowance under 

IND AS 109 is higher than the provisioning required under IRACP (including standard asset provisioning), the Company has 

not created any Impairment Reserve. 

E. Disclosure pursuant to RBI circular RBl/2019-20/220 DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20 dated April 17, 2020 the 

details of securitisation are given below 
(Rs. in millions) 

Particulars 
No. of Loan 

Accounts 
Amount 

(i) Moratorium extended Nos and due amount 62,488 122.18 

(ii) Asset classification benefit extended Nos and 2,850 45.28 

Outstanding amount 

(iii) Provisions made on 31st Mar-2020 - 18.95 

(iv) Provisions adjusted - -

Note : As on 31st Mar'20 moratorium extended for 62488 loan accounts, whereas the same extended for all loan 

accounts for Apr'20 to May'20 as per RBI circular 

51: Fraud 

Disclosure of Frauds reported during the year to RBI vide DNBS PD.CC NO. 256 / 03.10.042 / 2012 -13 dated 

2 March 2012: 

(Rs. in millions) 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Number of frauds reported during the year to Reserve Bank 1 5 

of India 

Amount involved in such frauds and provided for 0.64 4.10 

Total 0.64 4.10 

52 : RBI Compliance 

Company has ensured guidelines prescribed by RBI vide its Master Direction DNBR.PD.008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated 

September 01, 2016 (as amended from time to time) is being complied. During current year, RBI has issued guidance on 

implementation of Indian Accounting Standards vide RBl/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC) .CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 

dated March 13, 2020. Following Key aspects as per Ind AS were complied as per above guidance. 

a) Adherence to IRACP and ECL norms as prescribed by RBI. 

b) Computation of Capital Adequacy Ratio by ensuring compliance above the prescribed RBI norms. 

c) Adherence to the Asset and the Income Pattern of the Company as per RBI norms. 

d) Adherence to the Qualifying Assets Criteria of the Company as per RBI norms. 

e) Margin Cap of the Company as on 31 March 2020 is 9.36% ( 31 March 2019: 8.28%) . 



BELSTAR MICROFINANCE LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Belstar Investment and Finance Private Limited) 
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020 

53: Exposures 

The Company has no exposure to the real estate sector and capital market directly or indirectly in the current and previous 
year. 

54: Rating 

Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies during the year 

Instrument Rating agency Rating/Grading 

Long Term Bank Facilities CRISIL CRISIL A+ 

Non-Convertible Debentures CARE CARE A+ 

Non-Convertible Debentures CRISIL CRISIL A+ 

Subordinated Debts ICRA ICRAA 

MFI Grading CARE MFI 1 

55: Customer complaints 

SI No Particular 
As at As at 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

1 No. of complaints pending as at the beginning of the year 6 14 

2 No of complaints received during the year 249 285 

3 No of complaints redressed during the year 255 293 

4 No. of complaints pending as at the end of the year - 6 

56: Previous year comparatives 

Previous year's figures have been regrouped I reclassified, wherever considered necessary, to conform with current year's 

presentation. 

As per our Report of even date attached 

For M/s. N. Sankaran & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
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